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· ' tl•He 1S no etrnllol 
I ~ I . \ nule In thE' growth of _ 
l . j l ' J 1 Canada than t}le lad>: of 

1 11\lere~t In \he f!\udY 
. . \ ndi:'!n hb\Ol'Y· }I ad \\'!' T . ' ~ national ~r.t1:u~\a~m of our n~>igh 

i "c \\ ould long a~o h:tve made th<' LO\ AUS1~. ~~~:::" .:-! ;~.·:-;::::::~ ~;,~~··;;',:" ::::~:.: 
~chot•ls w~utd tontain us. n1anY reier­
encr:.. to l)ueen~ton BeiglllS and Chan· 
tau<!Hlt RS ,1\.merl<:an text-hOL'l"l con­
tain to \,udngton and Bnnl<n's H.i\1. 
'l'he fa<·l is, for rf:a~on"l whkll I cannot 

Potent Influence Exercised 
Them Upon the Early 

1-\ istory of Canada. 

\

<:aW'. and tl1e text-uool<~ us~d 1n our 

by verY w€ n explain. that cana<11ans are 

1 
too p •:o1<a1C. Pu~,;ihly, we have be<'ll l"O 
1nucll o<:eupi(:Ll with the !2:rcat r.o\itil'al, 
ntilitarY and soda\ confli•·ts of the ,,·orld 
an1uwl us a~ to fon~ct the ImPortant 
conflklS of a s1n1i1ar ldnd in "·llicll we uur~t>I\.L·S \\·ere cngage<l. an<l tns\t'ad o( 
cannnlzlng the nH'll who spent 1\ldr 
full J;tl'Pngt h of a generoul' tnanlJOOU \· 
I ht- <\evcloPH'ent oi our own count" -- we allowed ourselves to 

rrHI~tR RACHIFlCER. 
"·''-'"Y l.lY the ~lamor of 
loy uth•)r m~n of no 
llh;tant lk\do of 
our A nu~riua.n n•­
thc la!\t centurY, 
J•Jost fanatica\ :z•·al 
rclil: 11f tile ,.arlY 
U"Y, I 'n.nadlans 

Sincerity of Their Attachment to 

vloughsh:ll'e lf. <! 
"hi e-ll mC~li~ u~ 
<lurin;, tlw \:lst 
f''" p,tiun of "F" 
Quc•cn~l{>ll H 
to ~ho\\ \ll'.ll British Crown. 

-

lJerol~m (>[ · 

ft~lll'<! of l '­
;,f tlH' m: 
in the Pol~ 
tt•t'lt·t>. . 

\\'hY lb IL 
of piont·t-l'g- '' hn 
~hi~·~ i\nd "'•\th ~ 
~~~-:;;~r~~~~, : .'.,:·~~1 

PAf'l':-tt nY uo~. n. w. no~s. 
.._l ·.·••IU Jh.J .-Lt ... Illl 

:,.pll it to <"Oile<·t 
vnd stJ·ugglc ? 

long as the llurteet,~viun •~ con 
them~el\'E'S to cou>;tlltnion~tl nl\'ans t\•r 
the redre~<s of \l'tong~ r.,al o•· ~~ ··1di'UI 
the whole ppoplp \\'f'J·e practicallY lin· 
animovs in rP:'i~tin'" 11H: alleg"'' ''"" 
c·rllnchm~nl!< 0f. the Briti'h G 1\ c ntn•nt. 
It was only when the ccmt\uent,tl t:•n· 
gTL'SS in J771l deda•·e<l In fa\Ol' or ln­
Ut>!Jendenl'e lllil t there , was any\ '1 i Ill': 
like a <li~tinc\ ('leavage )f pulJlk opin· 
ion. To l'aY that the l <JY:lll~ts Lll •a­
fully acqniE'l'Ce<l in th•' var:ou" ac'-' 
passeil lJy \he British 'arllatnent r"1' 
the taxation o( the co.onles woul·l b~ 

lulf.:l"'-'~1 

11b .. ~'-· Glot"i<ilU• 

l~u•· U«gn•t. 

.. .,. •·uu.ntlifllt~ in 

lli~<ton ~J:.tt~··· 

-----

JlO Fr! llery b'\ "h 
~ ra1ts of the her 
H:s or thn.t stilT 
n;an pulnt to a ~;i 
1 ,ty uf 'l'oronlo 
l~onille, which ~ 
htstory or this citY 
"'" ha \'e, but sU!·t•l" . fl•·nt n<lPquatPIY in·b~he;li on. not repre-The rPgt;ln.;· meetlns or the 1.:.-m. Lf'lY· 

alists' Asso<:lation)''u~ hc·ld at lhe the­
atre of the Norm:ll Sc·hool Je"'terdaY 
afternoon. Mr. ll. H. Coul•. l'residet!t, 
1n the chair. Among t11ose pr.sr•nt 
\\E-re !<.Ir. Frunk 1•:. 11acuonal<l, :Mr. \Y. 
H. Eakin~. cdr. and :0.1rs. r,and, Mr:-;. 
A. \\'. H.o«s, Ml'S, Ireland, ~11·s. C. ,T. 

1he nwn to \\·hotn th ' ograph1cal bro11ze 
<h'hteil for its ad IS geno·ation is in-vancement. 

A Yaluable socie•y to charge them with a want of ·pnt,lk 
• · RPit•\l ann a total lncJ:rrerence to tlw 

Coming to the suhjt>ct which 1 am :-'<'11-estalJli!<hed r!ght'i of Bl'lti~~l ~~!~~ 
>'!'~dally asked to consiller, permit me JE'CtS. But .. to lli(orm ,\llll . · 
to say ho'' pleased 1 am that we ha\'e "as on"' thwg. and to d,e-
a Eoeiety ,,,·ganipect for the express pur- stroy the Go,·E>rnmt. ! wnfl ~111 

R. Stirling, Mrs. PhiliP Todd, Mt·~. Bre­
rf:ton, Dr. L. L. l'almer, ?.Ir. Cln.J IYld<, 
Mtc. Jnhn Ridout,\ Mrs. Small, :\le;;sr~. 
McHenn, E. A. Maclaurin, '\\rm. lto3f, 
B. :\1. l\Iowat ~\li~·s Ba~tedo, Miss Hum­
herstone. Mr'>. \V. A. Douglas, Mrs. 
Hic-1•~. Miss H. :\1. Ilill.\ Mr. Grant Hi· 
dout, :\liss Dunn, the I\1 i!-~~es CarPy,MI~~ 
Jane Jar\"is, Mrs. Geo. J(et·r, Mrs. Di6· 
nam, :\li·. Duun, •_ :O.Irs. King,;rn!ll, J\1rq. 
('o.rey, Misl' Lau•·a t'larke, Mr. and 
Mr~. Stephen JarYis . .Mr. :!\ll'Lean Ho­
ward, Lieut.-Col. Shaw, Mr. D. B. 
Hf'ad, Q.C .. Mrs. Straehan. Mrf'. Carey. 

l,c,se of keeping befo1·e the people of other thing. in the\r. ;-:'!.lv ~ ~hom<·!< 
cr.nada the story of at least one body they had not long ~o watt for tht­
ot courageous and devoted pionee~;s- portunity of RhOY>J~g :' llether 1 
the United Empire Loyalists-pioneers were actuated bY dl~m\eJI'sted mot 
whose sufferings on behalf of the em- in their refusal to fight against tile 
pire they loved "·ere only equalled by thority or the Crown In pre-t·evolu 
their rcsolut,. dPterminaton to preserve ary time!'!. _ , 
Its honor and Its glory unimpaired. It is universally admttted that r ,an 
That this society will do its work with adians during lhe first half of this CPll­
more than onilnary historical zeal may tury suffered sot·e and grievou:> ".1·onJP' 
be as~umed, lnasmuell as every record from the ma ladministra\lon of the Cell­
which it I!< called upon to consider bears onial Office, ·wrongs which cuhninal l'll 
some trace of family history an<l brings in the rebellion o! 1837. and \l'hidl 
caeh member into affcetlonate relation- threatened the overthrow of Brilil"h Htl· 

ship with an aneestry whieh he 1nay premacy In Canada. It is o.lfiO g"n 
Yery properly •·egard with prl<le and ally admitted, or ot lea~t gt'nerally 
veneratinn. The par<>nt stem of Jieved, that nit hough thePe wrongf' ·' 
tht> TlnltPcl l<Jmpire Loyalists was more speedily J'e<lr<'~sed be<:'ause of 
ori!',lnally British with the exception of rebellion they woold ne•···rth• The fi1·st eomrnuni..,alion, the r~;cd­

lng of \\hil'h >vas receivc?d with ap­
plause, was that from the SPcretary o! 
tllf' Governor-G cn<'ra\. accepling on IJe­
half nf llis Ex<:PIIPney a.nd the <~tJUll· 
tess of Minto the honorary metnber>'~hip 
conferr!'d upon their Excellencies by 

thn::e from the Statt o! New York, have been ultimllt-•Jy f<'JllOVE'cl 
who ~how evident traef's of German by the · Briti~h Ptu liamr.nt ill 
blo<•d, a p1·etty good pedigr·ee to b<'gin the ordinary course of .-vent~. 
\\ith. They were in no sense profes- Here again the intluence of th.: 
sion.ll agitators, but pursued their avo- lTriite<l Empire Loyalists was a~!>Prt-­
c:•tinns as farmers or merchants or ed and thPV who refu~e<l to r<>sent tht 
public men as quietly and unostentati- arbitrary action of King Georg!' liT. 
on~ly at thf'il· nPighhors. 'l'lli'Y con- anil his eoun~ellors by force of arms re 
h 1buted of their energy and in<lustry fu«€'d in Canada to resent the supel·c\1-
to the developmPnt of the country, and ious conduct of FamilY Compact!< and 
lO{•l{ part in the orillnary municipal misguided LIPUtf'nant-GoVPI'nOrf\ lJy a 
3nd legis'lative mon•ments of the titY•e rPsort to violent meaeures again:~t the 
a~ qUietly as a.ny of theh· fellow-cit!- Crown. Having !'~Pen eolonial in~t\ln­
~i<•ns. Neither by RJ)C'P<'h not' aetion did tie::~· ~-h~t~c;·· ,1 ::-, ., ... ,. ' 1 .. ~·~ 
rn•·y signify any intention to separ-~ town and Saratoga. by the revoluti•>ll 
ate themselv€'s from their felloW-\'olon- ary forcef'. they fel t the r~>spon>~ihil r ~ 
lsts. '\\'hen a maj(>ritY of tht' f'olonies, uf maiulainlng· iuwct, e> en "·1\h ai< if> 

thP association. 
A romllluni<'ation wn!'l also recciYe 1 

fl-om the Duke of Norfoll(, Postrn:tster­
General of Greal Hrltain. acknowle.1g­
lng- tll>'- r,·cdpt of n l<'tlE'l' of cong•·ntu­
la.tion "''nt by tl1e association UP''n 
the eonsunnnation ofi ltupertal P•'nny 

postH ""· A j,lllll CO!llllllli<'C \\'::IS appJinl"'l to 
'-' ~ ... - ~ .• •-Jilj.,dl( ••vi.&. \;i;,h ' :\li~S l_·"j;..:, 

ibhnn in nrgani>oing an hlstorh!al ex-
hibi tlcu. , -

-·~L<.._- !..l.- ..... ~ .• :~. ·n~ o:t"l''ln)UJ 'n.~e~1 , ~l..:t.l Ut.C n~-
80(·\ati.on ,•,·as \•Ht of debt, \Yitil a 
balance- on the 1·ight. Rict.e. nn•1 \h;lt 
thP nH~l1Chi?1"Shlp rnl\ iS floW a\>}H'O~H·h­
illg" lht- ·~00 n1arlt.-:. 

by tile declat:ation o~ lnnepe~'51ence, au- fault:~, fo1· the Unw being the <'Onstitu­
<>Pt••tl at Pluladelph•:l; In 1 • 16, <l<'clar- tiona I future or the Ca.naulan colonies, 
tod then· detei·mmatton to separate believing in the evolution of good r:ov­
them~"lves fn.>m the fatherland t~e ernm,.11 t by constitution methods. ' 
Loyalllots wert' obliged etther to join m 

My. \\'m. Hoar "ubmitteu ~ev<·r•ll 
nmen,1nl•"nt~ to ~he t'onstilutlon, vd1.:~~h 
\\'t>re adopleJ t_' nanln111llo:::.ly. ..-Ch~ Jlrst 
,.,,_,._t\Hil di'Sl'PIHiant,; of r.E. Loyali,;t,; 
resJ,tnag ln AnY part of the l)on1inion 
out,..iue of Ontario, ,,·hen• there ls 110 
n~~t~-:.·lP,t~on of \j.lt;. 1 .. (1yaliRt~. :-h<:t.ll b~ 
PllgJhle for mcomh.,r~hip. Th€ ,-.ec•oncl 
,a.nlPIHhncnt pro\'lcl111 d that lllt:!!nb()l'~ 
uullPl' the age uf ~~Yenteeu shall not be 

til!etl to ,•ole. 

.:1-fembE'l'f" El f·ded. 

'J'h!' fmLnl'ing were PledPd · memb ·r~ 
or the U:"SOciatlon: i\1iss !<'Iorenc~ B. 
Burnett, .:\liss Georgina M. Bu>·rltt. 

. Horaee \V. v;unllt, M. Stanley 
1. ('llarles 1\J. Bochen,, C'larenc' 

Burri\ t, Ottawa~~ Dr. Wih·on, :.\Jr. 
John 11. \\'llson, St. Thomas. 
· The following were proposed ro1· 
memberRhip: ::lfrs. c. J. H. Stirling, 
Miss Har-rie>t Boulton, Miss Langmuir. 
MiBl? \ iolet Langmuir, Dr. L. J,, Pal­
mer. i\lr". Palmer, 'Mrs. M)ll,., Mr~. 
Calctrr, llamilton; Miss Calder, J\lr. 
Harry Calder, :YJ.r~. Caliler, Dr. \Td'· 
non, Hamilton; 1\Irs. John Slm<o~1. 
<:;ayuga. 
· The feature of the meeting was an 
a<ldress on "'l'he United Empire Loyal­
lst~<," by Ho.n. G!'o. W. Ross, Min'ster 
of Education. In introducing Mt·. f:oss, 
the President referred to him as the 
able and elof[uent Minister of Edncn.­
tion, whom he might justly term tte 
Demosthenes of the Dominion, and )lq 
speaks Without a. pebble und,>r his 
tongue, too, he added. He rP.min<l.:>J 
lhe merll'bers of the arsoclatlon that it 
\\·a.s owing to the courtesy or Mr. Ro~,; 
that they enjoyed the hospitality of 
that magnificent hall, and regrl'~t~tl 
thAt O\\ ing to the great amount of sick­
ness prevailing the audience was not 

rgl'r. 
J:!on. C-t'eo. "n ... n.oHs• Address. 

lion. Geo. W. no~s. on rislng to ad­
dn:·ss the asSocintJon, \Vas received \Vitll 
applause.· He exprt•ssed the pleasure It 
afforded him to contribute a paver, anc.l 
appreciated , the 110nor conferred upon 
him in bf!lng ~·equeste\1 to do so. He 
<"onfessed . that. the association had mad~ 
him 1·athet· their debtor than other­
wise, fot' In order to comply wlth their 
request he ha<l been lead to rea.d bool{S 
which he had ne,·er read before and had 
become better acquainted wl\h phases 
and Incidents in the hlstory of this 

tht: euntlnenlal forces or leave th" The Only Shadow. 
cou11try. Their <'Onduet at this time 
anu the sufferings they endured for 
their loyalty to the British Government 
art too welll<nown to be open to serious 

(3) It is also possible, an<l Is. per­
hap!<, the only shadow caflt by th\" 
UnitPd Empire Loyalists on tlH' his­
tory o! Canada, that in the mainten­
ance or the prerogative!'! of \he Crown 
the~· were not susceptible to the growth 
of those democratic tendencies wh i(·h 
always characteJ'ize the Anglo-Saxml 
race under UPW conditions. It il'l the 
glory of the British constitution that 
it "broadens down from pt·eccdent to 
preceilent." Hn.ving seen the suilden 
expansion o! this demot·•·atic tcndeney 
ripen In \he Pnited States into repub­
licanism, Is it not pos~ilJle that the 
Pnited Empire Loyalists in Canada 
were unnecessarily alarmt'd 'Zl.t the ur­
gent demands of Canadians for all the 
privileges of self-government eompat­
ible with the acknowledgment of Bl'lt· 
ish sovereignty. As a con:;eq\1"1'!<'•' of 
\Lis disposition 1 fear that a Lilv,ral 
like my!<elf would be :tpt to say that the 
1.7nited Empire Loyalists took the side 
of the Conservative party in Canadian 
politics 'vhen they might with more 
advantage to the countl·y have arJ,·o­
catE'il the opposite view, and that they 
arrayed themselves in opposition to 
popular rights more strenuously !han 
the safety of Canadian institutions re­
quii'e<l. ·whether this be true or not, 
It is what any student of history wouhl 
expect having regar<l to their tradi­
tions a.nd their history, and, objection­
able as it may be to some of us. it is at 
least partially condoned by their un­
mistakable zeal for the perpetuation of 
our connection '"ith the mother coun­

critlc·i!;m. 
l\!1". Ro~s then entered into a con«id­

cratlon of the elements of that crltl­
clsm worth conside>ring. He ('Ombatted 
the argument that they were an in· 
s!;o1ifieant band or narrow-min<led, 
stub'born an<l Imperious advo<"ate~ of 
prerogative, and denied that the ehar­
acter and sodal ~tatus of the Loyal­
Ists "·ere lnferiOI" to tho~P of the advo· 
cates of lnuependence. They were not 
craven, an<l they denounced every Pn­
C:l'oachment of the Imperial Govern­
ment upon the colonial rights, but th•!Y 
had faith that Britain would ultimate­
ly redress evet·y wrong. 'fhe inhuman 
treatment or the Loyalists by their f<>l­
low-colonlsts was \ouc·hed upon, and It 
was pointed out that thP United States 
hall not redeemed the promise in the 
treaty of peace \Yhieh followed the war 
to "p1·ovide for the restitution of all 
estates belonging to n•al British EUb­
jects n·ho had not borne arms against 
them." 

Loyalists in Canadian History. 

1 shall now turn from the history of 
the l>nited Empire Loyalh;ta In the 
Gnitel! States, and consider very 
hricfl v the place they filled in the 
histm:y ,,f Canada. And hf'I_'e to 
a grE>at extent the process 1s one 
of Induction rather than historical 
demonstration. The question to be a.n­
gwerecl is somewhat. ln\rleate. IIavlng 
regard to the number of Loyalists who 
settled In CR.nada I (estimated by _S>r 
John Bomlnot at 35,000). and havmg 
re>gard to their edui-ational endowmena; 
R.nd th-e-ir ideas of government thea~ 
Influence In shaping the his tory ot thEir 
adopted country ln\lts eal'ly days must 
have been conslderal;>le. And now, Wh<'n 
their descenda.nts In Cana<la, according 
to the same authority, number 700,1)()1), 
if ethnology means anything. their in­
fluence upon the future hi:;tory of Can­
ails will make itself felt along the line 
of their early traditions with no lictle 
effect. 

11) It must be evident. unless th~ir 
attitude towards Lhe parent coun~ry 
had by some untoward cireumstanees 
been entirely changed, that they would 
;~s stron~ly uphold the soYerelgn:y of 
Great Britain in Ca.nada as they did in 
the land from which they were forcibly 
PXilP.d. "r'hP Rrit Ish Gu,·ernnl~nt hall 
sho'"~n its lntP.resl in the-ir we1rarc by 
approp1·tating for t1v•ir uRe large ~.,..ants 
of land and by the pay1nent of over, 
three million pounds sterling toward:: 
th.e losses they had incut·retl. ~re tnn.y. 
thereforP, saff>ly a!"t~Utne that of all 
the ><ettlers whethe1· ft·om lhe pare•1t 
country or other lands "·h<Ynlad-~ Can~ .. 
ada their home the 1.lnlled Bmplr-' 
Lnya11"ts might ~ ,.,.,.knned among the 
mo"t loyal to their Roverelgn and tile 
most devoted to the 1aws and institu­
tions of the parent countr·y. 

Aeccrding\y, we ftn<l that In the wnr 
of 1812, when an ar·meu invasion tbrca.t­
fon~d the overthrow or Brlti!'h rule in 
Canada, ihe United Empire Loyal'sts 
wPre among the most resolute or our 
citizens in •·epPlling ·the Invader, and 
among the boldeRt in declaring rhat 
Canada ~hould not, while they had any 
power of resistance, pass over to a 
for~ign flag. Having e:;ocaped from Lhe 
domlnati'ln or the republic at the p~r:J 
of thPir lives, they regarded with the 
greatest horror the possibility o! being 
obliged to acknowledge its supr~mo.<:-y 
or to accept the conditions which it 
would naturally impose upon them as 
citizens. And If the lTnlted States 
failed In its attempt to conttut>r Can­
af!.a In 1812, It was owing largely to 
•he Murdy loyl\lty of th~ men who were 

led from the republic as un" ot·th 

try. 
lmperial Federationlsts All. 

(4) And, lastly. may we not say t!J:lt 
the Loyalists. ,,-ho 12Q ) ~ru·s ago con­
te-nded for a unttf'd etnptre-, 'Vtt hethr:'r 
colonial or federated, were among t_he 
flrRt to grasp the Idea of a greater Brit ­
ain yPt to be a n<l to rP.alize that the 
lo~s of the American colonies might in­
definitely, if not forever, po~tpone the 
ccnsumrnatlon of Imperial unity '? H 
thi~ be true, then were th('y indeed 
prophets as well as patriots, prophets 
like many of old, whose forecasts np­
peare<l Impossible o! fulfllment anu 
whose words fell as an idle tale on thf' 
statesmen of the mother country and 
on their fellow-citizens in Amerirll. A 
united empire, a colonial union ei\h2r 
in sympathy or in fact, the quidnuncs 
of the times would say was impossible. 
Would French Canada ever be recon­
ciled to Anglo-Saxon rule ? \\'ould In­
dia, so far remov<·!l ft·om the 
eentre of governtnent, evPr l ook vdth 
affection on the stern hand which held 
her in subjection? Would Aush-alia 
ever turn her eyes towards thf' north 
with fee li ngs o! filia l devotion ? \Voulcl 
Britain. so conservative, so aggressive, 
RO slow to adapt llersel! to new condi­
tions, €Ver treat her colonies as chlld­
r•en aud not allens ? Vain hope. 11. 
cannot be. But the world goes "':nvlng­
ing through the grooves of ehange." 
As in the heginning or the creation a 
voice potPnt enough to be heat·d In the 
depths of chaos said, "Let there lJe 
light," and light was. So In the clos­
Ing days of this evenlful century, a 
voice potent aa the voice o! Diyinity 
itself sald to all the colonies or Great 
Britain, In whate\'er clime or zone or 
Sl'a they flourished, "Let us be a united 
empire," and the response was a W<'j'ld­
wi<le, unmistakable and ~ympatli.etlc 
Amen. Who d•,serves the honor for 
this happy C011summat1on I <lare not 
say-1 cannot say-but thiR mu{'h I 
think may be said without , any f<'at· 
o! exaggeration that the first lmpuiRe 
towards that lmverlalism whl<:h so 
marks the colonial feelings of to-day 
came from that little band o! exl} · 
whose faith In the future of thl' ' 
plre- neither pPr&<?<'Utlon nor 

could cr ,u~>h, IUld ·,. 





THE DEMOREST FAMILY. -
-------------~-----The Demorests came from the districts of Bordeaux and Picardy, where 

we find them distinguished for learning and zeal, and amongst the 
first tluguenots, against the wrath of both church and state v~s direct 
-ed. ~minent alike as scholars and controversialists, they contributed 
largely to the .theological writings that moulded Huguenot thought in 
the 16th. and I?th. centuries. We find John de Morest, a distinguish 
-ed theologian, removing to rtolland with his family early in the I?th. 
century. His son David with his wife Maria Schin and family of three 
sons, John and Samuel, sailed from Amsterdam in the nBontica", in the 
spring of 1663. Living two years at staten Island and thirteen at 
Harlem, 1D. the spring of Io?S, they settled at Hackensack, N.J.,where 
they had purchased three thousand acres of land. The father died in 
1693. John and ~amuel, the eldest and youngest sons of David Demorest 
married sisters named Dremin, and eleven children were born to each 
couple. - ~ventually, a Guilliame Demorest, born Jfeb. I6th., I769, 
left Dutchess County, N.Y., in I790. and emigrated to uanada. He 
taught school at Adolphustown for two years, married, and moved to 
J:>rince EdWA.,... ,., - · -"'h~~o h~ .,.. ......... -"""- -~ , '-' .... rt H.--rA a village sprang 
up, and · llt a grist 
mill, a t, pione r 
surveyor 1t • . _ .. ________ _ 

The Vr case of 
SO many (gift of 111rs. c. C. Inderwick, Perth, August 1963) .n the 
Dutch pi As a 
rule the merican 
Revolutj .istory 
as the t uilt up 
t)le bann y contain 
the nam undoubted-
lY John esttown, 
Among th ves of this old and substantial 
family should be mentioned Dr. Perry Vroo:man, whose rather William 
H. Vrooman, married r~ry Jane Ham, a linealdescendant of the famous 
pioneer. He was born at Camden, received a~liberal education and 
became a physician. He practised for eight years at Ya rker, but since 
I896 he has resided at Napanee, actively engaged in the successful 
practice of his profession. Although he takes an active part in pol­
itics in the Liberal interest, he is equally esteemed and respected· 
by all, and is justly regarded as one of the most public-spirited 
and distinguished citizens of Napanee. 

Dr. Vrooman married Miss Rose Cathrell, who v~s adopted after her 
father's death by 1~s. John D. Ham. They have three children Mary 
Percy and Josephine. (NOTE: I met the younger daughter at Fred. ' 
Miller's house, in Napanee, some year~ ago.) · 



/ THE DEMOREST FA~ITLY. -

~he Demorests came from the districts of Bordeaux and Picardy, where 
we find them distinguished for learning and zeal, and amongst the 
first Huguenots, against the wrath of both church and state v~s direct 
-ed. ~minent alike as scholars and controversialists, they contributed 
largely to the .theological writings that moulded Huguenot thought in 
the 16th. and I?th. centuries. We find John de Morest, a distinguish 
-ed theologian, removing to holland with his family early in the I?th. 
century. His son David with his wife Maria Schin and family of three 
sons, John and Samuel, sailed from Amsterdam in the nBontica", in the 
spring of 1663. Living two years at Staten Island and thirteen at 
Harlem, 1 the spring of I6?8, they settled at Hackensack, ~.J.,where 
they had purchased three thousand acres of land. The father died in 
1693. John and 0amuel, the eldest and youngest sons of David Demorest 
married sisters named Dremin, and eleven children were born to each 
couple. - ~ventually, a Guilliame Demorest, born ~~eb. I6th., I?69, 
left Dutchess County, N.Y., in 1?90. and emigrated to uanada. He 
taught school at Adolphustown for two years, married, and moved to 
~rince Edwar County, where he purchased land. Here. a village sprang 
up, and was named Demorestville. And "Squire Demorest" built a gr:i st 
mill, a sawmill, a linseed oil mill, and a church. Demorest, pioneer 
surveyor ana engineer of Sudbury, Ontario, was a descendant. 
------------~-----~----~-------~-~---------~~-----~~--~----~-~----~~ 

THE VROOMAN FA:MILY. -

The Vroomans originally came from Holland, but as in the case of 
so many families of that nationality, they first settled in the 
Dutch province of New Amsterdam, now the city of New York. As a 
rule they were loyal to the British Crown, and after t American 
Revolution became a part of that intrepid band, known ·n history 
as the United Empire Loyalists, who founded, cleared and built up 
~he banner province of Ontario. Official records at Albany contain 
the name of Elaphet Vrooman, but the Canadian pioneer was undoubted­
lY John Vrooman, who married Mary. Bell, and settled at Ernesttown, 
Among the present day representatives of this old and substantial 
family should be mentioned Dr. Perry Vrooman, whose rather William 
H. Vrooman, married r.JJlry Jane Ham, a linealdescendant of the famous 
pioneer He was born at Camden, received a~liberal education and 
became a physician. He p actised for eight years at Yarker, but since 
I896 he has resided at Napanee, actively engaged in the successful 
practice of his profession. Although he takes an active part in pol­
itics in the Liberal interest, he is equally esteemed and respected· 
by all, and is justly regarded as one of the most public-spirited 
and distinguished citizens of Napanee. 

Dr. Vrooman married Miss Rose Cathrell, who v~s adopted after her 
father's death by Mrs. John D. Ham. They have three children, Mary, 
Percy and Josephine. (NOTE: I met the younger daughter at Fred. 
:W.d.ller's house, in Napanee, some year~ ago.) --
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THE AYLSVvORTH FAMILY. -
---------------------

Two bramches of the Aylsworth family are settled in the Bay of 

~uinte district; one in the county of Lennox and Addington, the other 

in the county of Prince Edward. The Lennox and Addington branch are 

descended from Job Aylsworth, who emigrated from Rhode Island, in I?84, 

and settled on lot II, in the second concession of Ernesttown, immed­

iately in the village of Bath, where he, his wife and three children 

died in 1803, during the prevalence of an epidemic of "spotted fever or 

cerebro-spinal meningitis. 
1/ • 

He was a man of resolute character. Having a distressing felon, 

and being unable to obtain medical assistance in the sparsely settled 

condition of the country at that time, he himself cut off the affected 

finger with a chisel and mallet. He was born 1730, in Quidnesett, R.I., 

and was the grandson of Arthur Aylsworth, who c me there from England, 

about !670. 

Of the history of the family in England but little is known among 

their descendants here. It is a matter of tradition that Arthur Ayls­

worth, the Rhode Island Pioneer, had been a soldier under Cromwell, and 

on that account left England after the Restoration. An inscription on 

a stone in 1 ew College, Oxford, records the death on IBth. April, 1619, 

of one Anthony Aylsworth, Regius Professor in the uollege, under ~ueen 

Elizabeth, for some fifteen years, and stated ~aa~ by the inscription to 

have been "descended from an emin~nt and ancient family in Gloucester­

shire. "Gene rosa et anti.qua familia in comi t, gloostr oriundus." 

Job Aylesworth, who settled in Ernesttown, was the father of three 

sons, who came to man's estate, and of four daughters. Of the daughters 

two married and lived in Ernesttown; one, Elsie, married John Bristol, 

J 

-- · 
- - ------------------~-------- ---- - -
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who had also emigrated from Rhode Island, and from this marriage 

is descended a large familY settled in Ernesttown, Fredericksburgh 

and in the county of Prince Edward. Another daughter Elizabeth, 

married Morris Brisco, who lived on lot one, in the third concess-

ion of Ernesttown, where their descendants still reside. 

Of the sons of Job Aylsworth, the best known was the youngest, 

Bowen, who was about ten years of age when his parents came to uanadat­

He married, November 21st., 1797, Hannah, daughter of Robert Perry, 

of Ernesttown, and sister of Peter Perry, who afterwards, along with 

Shall 8. Bidwell, represented the county in Parliament, from 1824 

to IS36. 
Bowen Aylsworth upon his marriage, settled on lot number I$, 

in the third concession of Ernesttown, where his grandson, Bowen E. 

Aylsworth, ex-M. P. P. tor Lennox, now resides. Their familY con-

sisted of nine sons and four daughters, all of whom married and had 

families, so that at the time of the death of Bowen Aylsworth, in 

I863, his living children, grandchildren and great-grandchildren 

were over two hundred in number. 

or his sons, Job, David, Robert, Daniel and Isaac may be men­

tioned. 
David Aylsworth, son of Bowen, resided all his life in the 

township of Ernesttown, and was the father of sixteen children, 

one of whom is Bowen E. Aylsworth, late M.P.P. for the county. 

Robert Aylsworth, son of Bowen, was a farmer, township clerk for 

many years, and a local preacher in the Methodist Church, living in 

the township of Ernesttown, near the village of Odessa. 
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Of his sons, the eldest is Rev. David W. Aylsworth, a member 

of the Northern Conference, in th State of New York, and another 

is the Rev. Dr. Isa o B. Aylesworth, now stationed at ~arnia as a 

clergyman of the Methodist Church in Canada. 

Another son of Bowen Aylsworth, Daniel, remov d ·to the town-

ship of Dorchester in the county of Middlesex, where, after serving 

many years as clerk of the township, he died in !902. Dr. Isaac 

Brook Aylsworth, son of Bowen, practiced medicine for many years in 

the county of Lennox and Addington, and afterwards became a travel­

ling minister of the Wesleyan Methodist Church, f~nally settling in 

Collingwood as a retired physician and minister. His son, George 

M. Aylsworth, is a practicing physician in Collingwood at the present 

time. 

Job Aylsworth was a farmer and Justice of the Peace, who lived 

in the township of Camden, nea the village of Newburgh, and died 

there on the ?th.of ugust, !888. One of his sons, John B. ~ylsworth, 

still lives upon the same farm. He is the rather of Allen Bristol 

Aylesworth, K. c., of Toronto. Another son of Job Aylsworth is 

vwilliam R. Aylsworth, of Belleville, present Clerk of the county of 

Hastings. He was educated at the Newburgh Grammar School, and re­

ceived a certificate as school teacher at the early age of seventeen. 

He taught but a few months, having determined to adopt the profession 

of a land surveyoro At the age of twenty, he passed the preliminary 

examination as a student of this profession, and in 1858, we find him 

attending a course of lectures upon mineralogy and geology, by Pro­

fessor Chapman of the University of Toronto. He served a three years 
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apprenticeship with Aylsworth, Bowen & Parry , a nd in 1861, was licen­

sed as a Provincial Land Surveyor. During the five years next en­

suing, he was busily engaged at his profession, in public service 

and private employment; but in 1866, he accepted an appointment as 

a surveyor, ~ngineer and confidential agent to the Rathbun Company 

at Deseronto, a position-which he retained until I89I. He is at 

present County Clerk of the county of Hastings, having been appointed 

in I893. He is also agent for the Mohawk Indians of the Bay of ~uimte, 

and an appraiser for the Dominion Government. In 1871, he was elected 

Reeve of the village of Mill Point, in Tyendin&ga, and for tw·enty 

years \~S Reeve and member of the county council of Hastings. In 

I87~, he contested the riding of East Hastings. Being counted out by 

a technicality he unseated his opponent, John Whit ,- but did not 

stand for re-election. In I892,he c_ontested East Hastings as a 

Liberal candidate against W. P. Northrup, K.C., M.P., the present 

member. Mr. Aylsworth is a member of the Methodist Church, and is 

lso a Mason, a member of the A. 0. U. W. (Belleville Lodge), and 

was chairman of the Board of Trustees at Deseronto, eighteen years. 

Allen Bristol Aylesworth, K.C., is well known throughout the 

Dominion. He ranks among the leading barristers of Ontario, and his 

public services include his commendable service as one of the arbi­

trators chosen by the canadian government in determining the Alaskan 

award. 
(NOTE.) Of the Job Aylsworth Branch, John Bell Aylsworth m. 

L-

Katherin~ Bristo~; set. Newburgh. Issue: (a) Allen Bristol Aylesworth, 
m. Adela~de A. ~liller; set. oronto.(Issue: Allen Featherstone).-



THE BRISTOL FAMILY. -

John Bristol, the progenitor of the Bristol family of Prince Edward 

County, was born near Albany, N.Y., where he married Alice Aylsworth. 

~ oon after the Revolutionary War, ·he removed to Ernesttown, near Bath, 

where he reared a family amongst whom were John, Coleman, Benjamin, 

~orris and oel. 

About I8I9, Benjamin B!istol settled one mile east of Picton, on 

the premises now occupied by Almon Bristol, his son, and here establish­

ed a tannery, one of the first, if not the first in the County. He 

married Ruth Spencer, a daughter of the pioneer, Corey Spencer, and the 

issue of this union were: Almon, Eliza A., Matilda and uaroline. 

Almon Bristol, the eldest of these children, and the founder of the 

well known dry goods establishment of A. Bristol & Son, Picton, has 

for fifty years stood prominently before the people of the Bay district. 

Born 6th. September, I820, on the property now owned and occupied by 

him as a residence, Almon Bristol, in his boyhood, worked in his 

father's tannery, and also attended school at Picton, in the building 

where now stands the public school. At the age of eighteen he was sent 

to Whitesboro' Institute, which was three miles west of Utica, N.Y., 

butoowing to sickness, he was compelled to return home at the end of 

seven months. At that time travelling by coach was universal in the 

United States, but Almon Bristol saw the commencement of construction 

upon the New York Cent~l Railroad. Although he was a non-combatant 

during the Rebellion of I83?, he had one adventure that might have 

proved serious. \Vhen on his way to Utica School, and approaching 

Kingston in a sleigh with David B. Hill, Cornelius "Hill and a female 

passenger, the party was challenged by a sentry; but either through 
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John Bristol, the progenitor of the Bristol family of Prince Edward 

County, was born near Albany, N.Y., where he married Alice Aylsworth. 

oon after the Revolutionary war, ·he removed to Ernesttown, near Bath, 

where he reared a family amongst whom were John, Coleman, Benjamin, 

Norris and Joel. 

About I8I9, Benjamin Bristol settled one mile east of Picton, on 

the premises now occupied by Almon Bristol, his son, and here establish­

ed a tannery, one of the first, if not the first in the County. He 

married Ruth Spencer, a daughter of the pioneer, Corey Spencer, and the 

issue of this union were: Almon, Eliza A., Matilda and uaroline. 

Almon Bristol, the eldest of these children, and the founder of the 

well known dry goods establishment of A. Bristol & Son, Picton, has 

for fifty years stood prominently before the people of the Bay district. 

Born 6th. September, I820, on the property now owned and occupied by 

him as a residence, Almon Bristol, in his boyhood, worked in his 

rather's tannery, and also attended school at Picton, in the building 

where now stands the public school. At the age of eighteen he was sent 

to Whitesboro' Institute, which was three miles west of Utica, N.Y., 

butoowing to sickness, he was compelled to return home at the end of 

seven months. At that time travelling by coach was universal in the 

United States, but Almon Bristol saw the commencement of construction 

upon the New York Cent~l Railroad. Although he was a non-combatant 

during the Rebellion of I83?, he had one adventure that might have 

proved serious. VVhen on his way to Utica School, and approaching 

Kingston in a sleigh with David B. Hill, Cornelius.Hill and a female 

passenger, the party was challenged by a sentry; but either through 
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party kept on driving ahead. The sentry, thinking theY were trying to 

pass his post, raised his musket to fire at the s.hort range of thirty 

yards, and would have done so, had not another soldier who was standing 

by prevented him. 
J:ie commenced to take an active part in life at the age of twenty .. 

years by teaching in Fredericksburgh and Ameliasburg, Changing his oc­

cupation and the venue of his activities, at the age of twenty-two he 

took up the position of a dry-good's clerk in Kingston, which post he 

held for one or two years, when he was appointed deputy-registrar of 

Picton. He held that important. post for two years, wfteB-fte-waa-a~~e~R~­
and to-day ~ny of the deeds and other documents of the county are to 

be traced in his clear and finished handwriting. 



r..rHE FRALECK FAMILY. -
-------------~----

1l'his well-known Belleville family traces its ancestra.lsource back 
to Prussia, where two hundred years ago, the name was spelled Frol·g, 
and although successive generations have adopted different spellings, 
the one adopted by Judge Fraleck is the standard for many of the family 
at the present time. 

The great-grandfather of Belleville's junior county judge, was born 
in Wittenburg, Prussia, about !720, from which place he removed to 
Hamburg, Germany, where he was engaged in the shipping business, This 
vocation brought him in communication with ~ew York; and with fair pros­
pects before him in the ~ew World, he decided to emigrate.Landing in 
New York, he immediately went up the Hudson River, took advantage of 
the offer of the British Government to give grants of land, and settled 
where Hudson City at present stands, on the east side of the then North 
River. With him were five sons: Chtistopher, John, Martin, Peter and 
Louis. 

t the outbreak of the Revolutionary War, Martin Frolig and all 
his sons (with the exception of Louis) remained loyal to the British 
Crown, and fought on the side of the Royalists. Louis separated from 
the rest of the family, and joined the continental army., was made a 
captain, and was with General Gates when General Burgoyne surrendered. 
Louis Frolig was mustered out with the rank of Colonel; he was acquaint­
ed with the great Washington, and afterwards named of his sons -Thomas 
Tillotson - after one of the Assistant Secretaries of State. At t e 
close ot the war, martin, the father and his four other sons, removed 
to the to\vnship of Er qttown, east of Napanee, and took up land as 
United Empire Loyalists: Louis, still obdurate, remained as Colonel of 
the Militia, and we t into dry goods and general business at Poughkeep­
sie, There his first on, Thomas Tillotson Fraleck, was born on April 
20th., I797. 

In IB04, the other brothers finally persuaded Louis to erdgrate 
to Ernesttov~T.!l, where the othe-r·s of the family ·resided. The eldest son, 
Thomas Tillotson, before spoken of, was sent back and educated at the 
Troy Academy, till he was about fourteen years old, when he returned 
home to assist his father in business. 

rrhere were r·umours of war long prior to IBI2, and on its outbreak, 
the young volumt er enlisted in his uncle Christopher's regiment of dra­
goons. He was at the battles of ~ueensto\vn Heights and Lundy's Lane; & 
was conspicuous for his despatch riding during the campaign. tie v~s not 
mustered out till I82I. Subsequently he took up lands on parts of lots 
32 and 33, 3rd. concession of Sidney. In ~by, 1829, he married Hannah, 
daughter of Alex. Nicolson, a United Empire Loyalist, formerly of Ver­
mont. Issue: Three daughters and one son, ' dison Baldwin, born ]•ebruary 
6th., I84I. He received his primary education at the oidney Township 
public school. When thirteen years of age he entered the Frontenac 
Academy, Kingston, and afterwards attended Queen's College; at that 
time one of the junior pupils was Hugh John Macdonald; the principal 
was Robert Campbell, D.D., and ·a~ assistant principal was Rev. D?J. 
Mac donnell. He matriculated in ueen's University in !859 graduating 
in arts in I863, with honors in allbranches. ON th~ completion of his 
academic course, he went for a year to the Unites states. Returning to 
his home in the latter part of December, he v~s urged to accept the prin 
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-cipalship of the otirling Grammar School, which he did, teaching for 
one year, (I864). In January, I865, he entered the law office of Ponton 
& Falkiner, where, after two years, he had his articles transferred to 
Han. Stephen Richards, (Commissioner of Grown Lands). After having 
received his certificate of fitness in law, he was called to the Bar 
at Easter, I868, and admitted to p ctioe in the Hilary term of the 
same year. He at once took up the profession of law in Belleville; and 
in time married Jane E., daughter of William Judd, a merchant of utir­
ling. On the formation of the 49th. Hastings Rifles, he assumed the 
lieutenancy in ~o ~ Company, under Captain Rowe. On/the annual parade 
of this regiment, it is a notable fact that Thomas Scott who was killied 
by Louis Riel in the Canadian North \ est, was a right hand nan in this 
company. 

The successful career of Edison Baldwin Fraleok was fittingly crown 
-ed by an Order-in-Council, appointing him junior judge of the county 
of Hastings, on December 28th., I88I. He vJS.s elected a member of Queen's 
University Council in !889, on which board he has served continuously 
to the present time. He is a keen and ardent sportsman, a strict Con­
servative in politics, and a Presbyterian. He is a member of the Masonic 
craft, having first joined the old Belleville Lodge, No. I2I at the age 
of twenty-one. A keen sportsman, he has given some of his experiences 
to "Forest and Streamn, and other periodicals devoted to outdoor life. 

His elder son, Ernest Leigh Fraleok, B. A. & M.E., ~~swell known 
in Uobalt and elsewhere in Northern Ontario. 
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Joseph tlawley had a son samuel who v~s born at Stratford in 1647. 

Samuel had a son 1phraim who was born at New ~ilford in I692~ Ephraim 

had a son Captain Jehiel who was born at Newtown in I7I2. Jehiel 

Hawley subsequently removed from Connecticut to vermont, where he 

had a son Jeptha born at Arlington in 1740. 

Jeptha Hawley lived at Arlington until after the Revolutionary 

War, when he emigrated with his wife and seven children to uanada. 

He settled at Hath, and took up a large tract of U. E. L. land. The 

family, whose names were: Martin, Russell, Davis, Sheldon, Azoba, 

Amarilla, and Esther, became prominent persons in the locality, as 

well as in the other parts of Uanada in which they or their descend­

ants have since settled, and emulated the promin nee attained by their 

ancestors and connections in the United States. 

Two of the grandsons of Joseph Hawley, Josiah and Sheldon, both 

of whom were born.at Bath, the former in 1792, the latter in 1?94. J 

were among the pioneer merchants and lumber dealers in Trenton, where 

they settled in 181?. Not only were they very successful, owning a 

business which, for the times, was a very large one, but they became 

active factors in the affairs of the community. The two brothers had 

the entire confidence of the community, and the name of Hawley was a 

household word throughout the district, and even in Montreal and 

Quebec, to which places they shipped large quantities of lumber, te v 

returning with goods with which to supply their extensive country 

trade. 

Josiah Hawley, who was a good citizen in all that the phrase 

implies, was of a retiring disposition, and not so active a partici-
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-pant in loca+ affairs as Sheldon Hawley. After several prosperous 

years he sold out his interest and partnership to his brother, who 

continued the business for many years afterwand. 

Records show that ~heldon Hawley served as Captain in the var 

of I8I2, and as Lieut.-Colonel in the Rebellion of I83?-38. During 

the latter troublous times he gave the Government the use of his 

storehouse in which to store arms, ammunition and provisions. The 

storehouse was burned down by the Rebels, who, it was supposed, also 

burned Sheldon's house on Hawley's Hill. It was in IB37 that Sheldon 

Hawley with Edmund urney, Clark Potter and others brought the Govern­

money from Kingston to 1l'renton, where they put it in the old stone 

barracks for sara keeping. 

Sheldon Hawley was a man of great executive ability, a nd natur-

ally a leader; but his interests were not alone confined to secular 

matters; he was a strong churchman. He used his most strenuous endeavo 

-ours to have Trenton, which prior to that had only been an out 

of the Church of England at the Carrying Place, become a separate 

parish church. In support of his wish, besides donating the land on 

which, in I845, St. George's Church was erected, he subscribed one 

hundred pounds; the Right Rev. Bishop Strachan having previously given 

a like amount. Sheldon Hawley was among the first Wardens elected for 

the church, and held the office until his death. He was a generous 

man, not only in church matters, but with reference to the poor; and 

he turned away no deserving object empty-handed. While his bounty was 

ever largesse for the ne. dy, his hospitable latch-string always hung 

on the outside of the door. He ent r~ained many persons of import-
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-ance, and his strong personality and conversational powers especially 

fitted him for the task. 

After a useful and strenuous life, Sheldon Hawley died in I868, 
seventy-four 

agedje~gR~y-tkFee years, and his brother Josiah in 1875, aged eighty-

three years. In their deaths, Trenton lost two of its most respected 

and prominent citizens. Of Sheldon 'Hawley's family it may be mention­

that Susan M. married Alonzo Shaver, and later Philip Carman; she, 

with her sister Mercy, (who is the widow of the late prominent bar­

rister, Charles Francis), reside in their comfortable home in Trenton. 

Nancy married Charles Rykert, a barrister of St. Catharines. Amanda s. 
married David Roblin, formerly of Trenton. Robert married Pauline 

Howard and settled in the United States. 

Josiah Hawley had two sons: Josiah H., who was killed in the 

American Civil War; and Albert D. C., who became prominent in the 

business affairs of Trenton. He was born in 1830, and for many years, 

and untii his death in 1870, was the leading druggist and stationer of 

the town. He was a man of affairs, and before Trenton reached its 

present size, was Reeve, and afterwards Councillor. He was also a 

Captain in the Militia, an active and prominent member of the Church 

of England, a member of the Loyal Orange Lodge, and, like many other 

members of the Hawley family, a strong Conservative. His son, Albert 

w. Hawley, in !877, succeeded him in his business, which he still 

conducts. He takes a leading part in the af~airs of his native town, 

and has been its Mayor, a member of the School Board for over twenty 

years, Chairman of the Conservative Association, and ~arden of St. 

George's Church. 
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educated for, and became a physician. He was very skillful and is 

mentioned by leading people of Trenton as the cleverest young man that 

the place has produced. He died at the early age of thirty-six, when 

at the threshold of success, and unmarried. Charles L. Hawley, L.D.S., 

is a graduate of the Royal College of Dental Surgeons, Toronto, and has 

practiced his profession at Trenton since I88I . He is a member of the 

Church of England, a conservative in politics, and has been a member 

of the Town Council. 

Amanda Hawley, youngest daughter of Davis Hawley and gra d aug _ 

ter of Joseph Hawley, married samuel Miller, (see Andrew Miller Family) 

Two of her grandchildren, and therefore of the sixth generation from 

the Canadian pioneer, are F. F. Miller, C.E., and his sister, Mrs. F.T. 

Dibb, of Napanee. 

JEPTHA HAWLEY. 

THE CHILDREN AND GRANDCHILDREN: 
(I) 

I. Davis Hawley, m. and had issue:/Jehiel, (2) Rachael, (3) sarah, 

(4) Joseph c., (5) Clarinda, (6) Josiah, (7) Sheldon, {8) Mary A., 

9} Amanda, a nd (IO} Abijah. 

THE GRANDCHILDREN AND ISSUE: 

See I. The Davis Haw~ey Branch: 

(I) Jehiel Hawley, m. Lavinia Ryder: set. near Napanee Issue· 
(a}} Davis, (b,) Reuben, (c) Charles, (d) Nelson (e) Myra ·and 
( f Pa rmela • ' ' 

(2} Rachael Hawley, m. John Miller; set. Bath. Issue: (a} John. 



THE HAWLEY FAMILY - Continued - 6. 

----~---------------------------------------------------------------
( 3) 

( 4) 

{5) 

( 6) 

( 7) 

( 8) 

( 9) 

{IO) 

sarah Hawley; m. Charles Everett; set. Kingston. Issue: 
(a) Mary A., (b) sarah, and (c) Clarinda. 
Joseph G. Hawley, m. Mary Douglas; set. South Fredericksburg. 
Issue: {a) George B., (b) Charles H., (c) John M., ( d ·) :Miry A 
{e) Amanda, and (f) Caroline. 
Clarinda Hawley, m. John Stewart; set. Perth. Issue: (a) 
Clarinda Stewart , m. Frank Wallbridge; set. Belleville. 
Josiah Hawley, m· susan Johns, I828; set. Trenton. Issue: 
(a) Albert D. c. dawley, m. Marinda Knight, of the pioneer 
Kingston Knight Family; set. Trenton. Issue: sarah • 
Hawley, m. Rev. Montague G. Poole; set. Trenton. (Issue: 
Regina d G., stanley G., Winnifred G. , and Albert G. 
Albert w. Hawley, m. Eliza Gordon Banter; set. Trenton. 
(Issue: Harold A., Marian G., He1en and Louise S.) 
Edward A. Hawley, unm; &~ei-~9-~e&P • ~avii Uharles L. 
Hawley, m. sara Gill; set. ·rrenton. Issue: Arthur, Henry 
and John. Harold .tl. Hawley, M. ;D.; d. unm., aged 36 years. 
David J. Hawley, m. ~ffie Cornwall; set. ~renton. (Issue: 
Olive, Lucille, Kathleen, Edwin and David); Gertrude A. 
Hawley, m. Walter c. Boddy, Manager, Standard Bank, Gampbell­
ford. Issue: Albert and Walter. Annie M. Hawley, unm. (b.) 
Josiah .tl. Hawley, killed in Americ n Uivil War. 
Sheldon Hawley, m. Nancy Johns, I82I; set. Trenton. Issue: 
(a) Susan Mo Hawley, m. ( Ist.) Alonzo Shaver and (2nd.) 
Philip Carman; set. Trenton; no issue. (b) JohnS. Hawley, d 
unm. {o) Sheldon Hawley, d. umn. (d) Nancy Hawley, m.Charles 
Rykert; set. St. Catharines. Issue: ~1 - red Rykert , d.y. 
Charles Rykert, m. Ella Wells; set. United States; no issue. 
Edwin Rykert, m. 1~bel H rris; set. Montreal. lssue: Phyllis. 
Arthur Rykert, m. and set. Dundas. Issue: Doris. Emma Rykert 
m. Clarence McCuaig; set. Montreal. Issue:·Rykert, Eric and 
Clarence; Annie and Henry Ryk rt, unm. ; G~orge s.nd .b.lice 
Rykert, · d .y. (a) George Hawley, d. unm.; (f) Ananda V. Hawley1 

m David Roblin; set. Trento~. Issue: Mercy Roblin, d.y.; 
Robert Roblin, d.y.; T h Roblin; d.y. Susam E. Roblin, m. 
Philip Price; set. St. Catharines. Issue: Phjlip I., Phyllis 
and Era V. (g) Mercy Hawley, m. Charles Francis; set. Tre11to 
No issue. (h) Robert Hawley, m. Pauline Howard; set. United 
States. Issue: Howard,and Grace, m. Ralph Wells; set. Cali­
fornia. (Issue: Ralph, Howard H., Robert H., and Frances G. 
Mary A. Hawley, m. Daniel Everett; set. Kingston. Issue: 
(a) sarah and (b) Mercy. 
Amanda Hawley, m. samuel Miller; set. Ernesttown. Issue:(a) 
Davis Hawley, (b) William, (c) Nancy, (d) Mercy, (e) Samuel 
K., (f) Charles Everett, and (g) Anna. See the Andrew Miller · 
Family. 
Abijah Hawley, m. Miss Johnson; set. Bath. 



OMITTED: 

See page 390 - "Pioneer Life On the Bay of Quinte " 

The H awley Family -

Omitted:-

Omitted -

J"eptha Hawley: 
The Children & Grandchildren: 

see I. The Davis Hawley Branch: 
(I) 

( 2) Rachel Hawley m. John Miller; Setf Bath. Issue: 

((a) John, m. Mercy Everett: Issue: Daniel, Mary 

Jpseph, Caroline, ~lizabeth, Albert, all un.m. 
. ' 

and Emma d.y. 
(b} 

Maria, m. WilliamBell, Jr •• set¢ Perth. Issue: 
William Hawley, d.y., Archibald Macdiarmid and 
Mary Amanda Bell, both un m. (3) 

(4) (5) (6) (7) (e) (9) (IO). 
-------------------------------

See pg. 54I 1 ANDREW MILLER; 

The Children and Grandchildren: 
(I) Andrew Miller 

( l!J) John. m. Rache1Hawley -$ee Davis Hawley Branch 

J"eptha hawley - pg.390. (III) Jacob Miller 

(IV) Samuel Miller 

(V) Peter Miller 
(VI) William Miller 
(VII) Nancy lv.tiller 



THE HAM FAMILY. -

A numerous family, but one that has well maintained the traditions 

of its distinguished ancestry, is descended from John Ham, who was a 

gallant soldier of the King during the War of the Revolution. Many 

anecdotes are told that illustrate his strenuous activity; upon one 

occasion it is said that he received a flesh wound and having a comrade 

extract the bullet, orde.red him to ttfire it back at the Yankee who shot 

it". At the close of the Revolution he settled at Ernesttown, and by his 

wife, ~lizabeth Dunsbaugh had many descendants, They in turn have inter­

~rried with many of the oldest and most substantial families of the 

Bay district, As a rule the ttams have been thrifty and well-to-do and 

have always occupied an honorable place in the community. wtts. Vrooman, 

the mother of D • • P . Vrooman, of Napanee, is the daughter of Richard 

Ham, w~o married sarah Blanchard, seventh son and child of the pioneer. 

Zina Ham, son of Rev. John Ham, was born in Fredericksburgh, where 

he resided for forty years. He is at present carrying on the insurance 

business at .Napanee. His only child, John s, Ham, also reside<· in .Nap-

a nee with his wife (formerly Miss Helen Miller) and their two sons, 

Douglas ~lille~ and kenneth Sheridan. Rev. John Ham had thirteen 

children- the thirteenth being named "Concurrence". She died unnarried. 



THE HAGERMAN FAMILY.-
-------- ---~ ---------

From Canniff's most valuable rvork we find that Nicholas Hagerntln came 
from New York with the VanAlstine party, and settled at Adolphustown in 
I784. He had studied law before leaving New York, and was one of the 
first lawyers to practice in what afterwards became Upper Canada.Canniff 
says: ''There were at least two brothers, David and Christopher, and tvro 
daughters, Betsey and Karia. The brothers were elected to .Parliament 
at the same time, but David died before the meeting of Parliament." 
Christopher, who was a lieutenant in the Har of I8I2, was a barrister 
and later became a judge. Just what connection Henry Hagerman, the 
pioneer of 8idney, bore to the above family we are unable to state, but(e 
as he came from New York to Adolphustown and at a very early day pioneer­
his way to Sidney, he undoubt aly belonged to this distinguished family. 
Henry Hagerman settled on the Front of Sidney. His son, Henry Hagerman, 
amassed considerable wealth, making handsome advances to all of his 
children and still leaving a large estate. He \~s for years one of the 
magistrates of the Province and was highly respected. his daughter 
Fidelia, rrarried Owen Roblin, and settled at 'lhurlow. 

--------------~~----------------------------------~------------------~-

THE PERRY FAMILY. -

An illustrious name in the annals of the United States and uanada 
is the name of Perry, It t~s Commodore ~erry who won the famous victory 
at ut-in-Bay and framed the historic despatch so often quoted:"/e have 
met the enemy and they are ours." Another Commodore Perry opened Japan 
to,the commerce of the world. 'he family is descended from one, David 
Perry, but it ~~s his son Robert who came to Canada, and for the purposes 
this history, he is regarded as the ancestor or pioneer of the Perry 
family. He was born at Bristol, Massachusetts, March 2nd., I?5I, and 
married Jemima ~shburn, who was born at Attleborough, Massachusetts, 
April I3th., I754. They were married 1nrch I9th., I772, and their des­
cendants have been numerous, and many of them prominent in the history 
of Ontario. David Perry built the first saw-millfbn the site of the 
present town of Newburgh. /in I820 

Rev. Robert Eerry ~N<as famous in his day, and is still remembered as 
one of the builders of the ~thodist church in Canada. - - - Other 
members of the family have also taken an active part in public life 
including Peter Perry, grandson of the pioneer, who represented Le~ox 
and Addington in the Legislature of Upper Canada. - - -Another descendant 
of the pioneer, ' filliam Ryerson Gordonier ,was, for more than thirty years 
secretary and treasurer of the Julien, Bath and Napanee Cheese Companies. 
He is thesecretary of the NapaneeCheese Board and is thoroughly versed in 
what is now the most important export of the Hay of i~uinte region. -
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THE RUTTAN FAMILY. -
-----------------

lilliam and .Peter Ruttan came to Adolphustown with the pioneers dJ 
I7e4 where each of them had grants of twelve hundred acres of land. 
Thei~ family cam fnom the old seaport town of Rochelle, ninety-three 
miles north of Bourdeaux, and seventy-six miles from Nantes, a strongly 
fortified place which held out against Richelieu's powerful army for 
fourteen months: It was a port remarkable in history, and/for some years 
in the possession of the English, from whom it was taken in I224. Dur­
ing the religious war, and especially after the massacre of Saint Bar­
tholomew on August 24th., I572, it was a stronghold of the ~rotestants . 
The Ruttan family were Huguenots, a word that was used as a term of re­
proach by the ~rench Catholics, to nickname their countrymen of the 
reformed churches, or protestants. For twelve years the~ were a happy 
people, until driven to despair by the cruelty of Gather1ne de Medec1s, 
mother of Uharles IX. Seventy-thousand Huguenots, or ]rench Protestants, 
were cruelly massacred throughout the kingdom by secred orders from the 
King, instigated by the Queen Dowager. A considerable number emigrated 
after this event to ~orth America, and settled on the Delaware and in the 
Carolinas, and were among the earliest emigrants from Europe. Twenty­
six years after this frightful event, the people's minds were pacified by 
by the celebrated Edict of Nantes, which arose from the liberality of 
Henry IV., who granted toleration to his Protestant subjects in I598. 
This liberty of conscience they enjoyed for e.ighty-seven years, when 
Henry's famous edict was revoked by Louis XIV., in I685. This injudic­
ious and unjust policy lost to France eight hundred thousand Protestants 
and gave to England fifty thousand industrious artisans. Some thousands, 
who brought with them the art of manufacturing silk, settled in Spit­
field, London, where their quiet descendants yet remain; others settled 
in Soho and St. Giles, pursuing the art of making crystal glasses and 
various fine works in which theyexcelled; among others, jewellery, then 
but little understood in England. There being no longer a place of 
refuge for liberty of conscience, the Ruttans fled with their families 
to England, then to Holland, and in I734 Abraham Ruttan, the American 
ancestor, settled at a town called New Rochelle, N.Y. This to,.m, or 
tract of land, was purchased in I689 expressly for a Hugu not s ttlement 
by Jacob Leisler, Commissioner of the Admiralty under Governor Dangan, of 
the province of New York. It soon increased, and in I?OO had a vast 
number of militia officers loyal to the King. To this settlement repair­
ed soon after his arrival. He married Marie Petilion, and here were born 
·william, Peter and Abraham; the two former in I?57 and I?59, respectively 
Abraham never married; he settled on ~anhattan Island, where he owned one 
hundred acres of land. In I7?8 Peter accompanied the celebrated Indian 
chieftain, Brant, from ew York to 11estern Canada on a tour of observa­
tion. It was at this period that Brant, who belonged to the loyalist 
party, made himself extremely useful; it being to the interest of the 
British Government to retain his confidence, h·e was consequently employed 
in various ways. Brant and Peter were fast friends, so much so indeed, 
that the latter named his son, Joseph Brant Ruttan. When they parted 
Brant presen~ed Peter with a handsome brace of pistols, wjich, at his' 
death, came 1nto the possession of his nephew, Sheriff Ruttan. Brant also 
peeled ~rom a birch tree a piece o: bark, and on it wrote his certificate 
of serv1~es rendered by Ruttan, wh1ch the latter presented to the proper 
authorit1es and was granted that tract of land at Adolphustown which 
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RUTTAN FAI\i!rLY - Continued - 2. -
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terminates in Ruttan's Point. ~eter Ruttan had a lieutenant's commiss­
ion in the Four.th Battalon of New Jersey in I?79, and transferred to 
the Third Battalion in I78I. William held a captain's commission in 
the latter battalion at that time. It is known that Peter was in 
commission in I783, being stationed at staten Island. It was in Sep­
tember of that year that he and his brother William, left New York for 
canada with the van Alstine band of United Empire Loyalists. 

They experienced many hardships, but the remembrance of the distract­
ed and unhappy country they had left at times soothed their cares and 
gave them fresh cause for thankfulness for their preservation. Peter 
Ruttan died in 1845, aged eighty-four. 

V1illiam Ruttan, who had saved some money from the sale of a captain's 
commdssion, despatched two men all the way to Albany, two hundred miles 
for four bushels of Indian corn. The journey was made during the win­
ter a nd through forest wilds without roads. The mission was executed 
in safety and on this short allowance, with the milk of one cow, eight 
persons subsisted until the following harvest. 

R. Fulford Ruttan, professor of chemistry in c .ill University, has 
the old grandfather's clock which is claimed to have been the first 

clock ever set going in Ado;phustown. It is said that the whole neigh­
bourhood at one ·time guided their household arrangements by his grand­
mother's dinner horn, which she took pains always to blow regularly, 
sharp at noon hour, well knowing that there was no other clock but 
hers for any of the neighbors to be guided by. 

Lieutenant Henry Ruttan, son of William, saw service with the 
British during th War of I8I2, and vms prominent at the battle of 
Lundy's Lane, During this engagement General Drummond called on Lieu­
tenant Ruttan's company for an officer and twenty men to advance and 
a certain whether they had a friend or an enemy i n frott. A good deal 
of confusion ensued upon this call from the superabundance of the vol­
unteers for the service, and Lieutenant Ruttan, being of the opinion 
that one or two men could better execute the order, took with h~m 
Corporal Ferguson and quietly went forward, under cover of a fence and 
fallen trees, until he was able to discern soldiers with long-tailed 
coats turned up with white, and other indications which convinced him 
that they were enemies. About this time a field piece was discharged 
which started a general fusilade. The lieutenant and corporal succe~d­
ed in reaching their line unhurt, but here the former was shot through 
the right shoulder and remained unconscious until two o'clock in the 
following morning. The surgeon pronounced his case hopeless. With other 
wounded, however, he was conveyed to Niagara, and thence across the lake 
in a schooner and on to Kingston by batteau, where he ultimately re­
covered. Lieutenant Henry Ruttan '~s made a major of militia in I8I6. 
In !820 he was elected a member of the House of Assembly for Northum­
berland. In October, I827, he was appointed Sheriff for the Newcastle 
District, which included the counties of Northumberland and Durham. 
In 1836 he was again elected to the House of Assembly and during the 
Parliament in !838 was unanimously elected Speaker @f'·the House. 

eter , Ruttan, another son of Willia t · · . 
have been the first white child bo . m, he p1oneer, 1s sa1d to 
having been married in New Yor r~ ln Adolphustown, the parents 
served on the British side dur~nEr~~lo~s to September, I?83. He too 

e ar of I8I2, and won his way up 



Continued - 3. -
1.HE RUTTAN FAMILY -------------------------------------------------------------------
through the ranks to a colonelcy. · After the capture of the fort at 
Ogdensburg, he helped to remove the ammunition, stores and cannon to 
UAnada. In I82? he purchased four hundred acres of land near Northport 
and removed there with his family. David w., of Picton, his son, also 
possessed considerable military taste and became a lieutenant and 
captain of the 'l'hird Battalion of the Prince Edward militia. J:ie was 
sent to Toronto as a delegate of the first Reform convention held in 
Upper Canada, where the confederation of the provinced was planned. 
He has long been a magistrate. 

I, 
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THE WALLBRIDGE FAMILY. -
------------~---------

Amdd the peaceful hamlets of old Dorsetshire, and bound by the chalk 
cliffs of the Uhannel, the forbear of the Wallbridges lived the life of 
an English country gentleman until aroused by the dictates of conscience 
or imbued with the fever of war, he became engulfed in the unhappy issues 
of Monmouth's rebellion and, like his princely leader, had to fly the 
country. . · 

The colonies of America were at that time the natural harbor of safet 
for such a refugee; and it was there that Henry Wallbridge and his wife, 
Anna Amos, sought their new home, secure in the friendly sympathies of 
their Connecticut neighbours, and encouraged for their future by an abun-
dant promise of prosperity. · 

In their family was a son, William H., who was born in I6;o, and in 
I7I3 married Abigail Lawr nee. An issue of this marriage was Zebulon 
all rid e who was born i ISIS. Zebulon married Sarah Fobes, and was 

t e t _ of Asa and Elijah Wall bridge, the uanadian pioneers. 
Previous to the Revolutionary War Zebulon Wallbridge lived with his 

family near Saratoga, N.Y., but seemingly his son Elijah migrated into 
Vermont, which was of a later settlement, for he has been described as 
a United Empire Loyalist from Bennington. It is difficult to determine 
what part the Wallbridges took in the war. But whatever part they played 
there were members of the family on both sides; for the war was the caus 
of dissension among them. 

~lijah Wallbridge attacked a military prison a d succeeded in liber­
ating a number of imprisoned fellow sympathisers. ~he guardianship of 
his old musket, which was carefully retained in the possession of the 
family, passed into the keeping of the Ron. Lewis Wallbridge. 

At the conclusion of the war, for reasons which, if not possible to 
state definitely, can easily be inferred, Asa Wallbridge left the States. 
An ardent sportsman and inured to hardships, he was not to be awed by the 
uncertainties of pioneering. Migrating to ew Brunswick, he settled on 
the Jim Sack River, where, at what is now known as allbridge's Creek, he 
worked a far.m and ran a saw mill until, in I790, he moved we rd. 

Th shores of the Bay of Quinte in those days were rich preserves for 
the sportsman. rvellous accounts of the game to be shot and the fish to 
be caught, were told in Lo er Canada, and, as is the way, were magnified 
in the telling. Such a prosp ot appealed to the sporting instincts of 
Asa Wallbridge, and induced him, with four friends, .to come to Upper 
Canada intent on shooting and r·shing. 

he hunt rs made their h adquarters at Singleton's Creek, which was 
the mouth of the moira River; and in all the districts round about, shot 
and fished to their heart'_s content. Their prospect of the country quick 
ly led them to perceive its great valu ; and with the intention of buy­
ing a large area, and in order to subscribe the purchase money the five 
men joined in partnership. Asa Wallbridge returned to the States to pro­
cure the money from his brother Elijah; but, as some of the accounts 
narrate, he was arrested as a spy. 

Elijah allbridge, who was accompanied by his son William H., first 
came to ?anada in ISOO, ~nd, two years later, bought from a surveyor 
named Sm1th two thousand acres of land in Ameliasburgh. The land stretch 
ed eastward from the Anderson place, included Long Point, and extended 
f~om the Bay Front to the marsh in the rear. Elijah divided it up into 
f1ve farms of about three hundred acres each, one of which he gave to 
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-------------------~--------------------------------------------------
each of his children, who were all, with the exception of one d~ughter, 
co~ortably settled there by the year IBI2. A further lot of f1ve hun­
dred acres he reserved for a common pasturage , as was the custom in the 
American colonies. These farms were the first proper homes of the all­
bridges in Upper Canada. 'l'hey are for the most part still possessed by des 
-cendants of fallbridges, and the district is called t~e ~allbri~ge tract. 

Asa eventually returned to uanada. He never marr1ed, but l1ved on 
Massassaga ~oint where, on the farm of his nephew ~ illiam H. Wal1bridge, 
he died in 1827. He is said to have built the first house in Belleville. 
It was a log structure, such as could live and store his furs in; and 
stood on the vacant lot on the corner of Front and Dundas streets, north 
of Clark's blacksmith shop. The home, with some additions, was after­
wards used as a hotel by a man named 8impson. After his death his widow 
bought the lot on the north side of Dundas Street, where it meets Front 
Street, and there she partially erected a frame house, which was acquired 
by William H. Wallbridge, who com leted it and afterwards lived there for 
many years. William H. allbridg engaged extensively in business as a 
lumber merchant, a trader and a farmer. His square timber was rafted to 
Quebec, and supplies brought back on the return trip. 

Possessed of considerable means before coming into Canada, and being 
men of a high mental calibre and sound business insight, the Wallbridges 
have always been prominent and prosperous From their first incoming th 
were noted for their sporting prowess and daring feats, for their wealth 
and for their lands, for their ability and enterprise Elijah allbridge 
who married Margaret Halloway, with his family, made a short settlement 
at eyer's Creek; and was one of principal citizens to petition Governor 
Gore to give a name of greater distinction to the growing village. It 
was in response to their petition that the Governor conferred the name 
of Belleville, in honor of his wife, Lady Bella Gore. 

The Hon. Lewis Wallbridge also was a distinguished member of the 
family and citizen of the colony. He was born in IBI6, which was the 
year in which Belleville vres surveyed into lots. After two years school­
ing in Montreal, Lewis Wallbridge was sent to the Upper Canada College. 
Choosing the law for his profession, he was, in !855, elected a member 
of the Law Society of Upper Canada. ~uickly coming to be regarded as· one 
of the most brilliant lawyers in Central Ontario, he received, in I863, 
his patent as Solicitor-General of Upper Canada A few months later, in 
the same year, he was elected Speaker of the Legislative Assembly of 
Upper and Lower Canada; he was the first Speaker when Parliament first 
met in the new Parliament buildings at Ottawa. He held other distinct­
ions and offices. He presided over the debates on the uonfederation of 
the Provinces; his parliamentary constituency was East Hastings· and he 
was a Director of the Bank of Upper Canada. In I882 he had the honor to 
be appointed Chief Justice of the ueen's Bench for Manitoba, a high 
position to which he lent/lustre of his fine character and sterling 
ability until his death in I887. 

A brother of the Hon. Lewis Wallbridge, Brancis Wallbridge, was 
for many years one of the leading lumber merchants of Canada. Thomas c. 
Wallbridge not only followed the profession which seems peculiarly to 
cla the members of the family, and became a barrister, but was a mill­
owner, too. 
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---~---~---------------~-----------~---------------------------------Another representative of this family who has.developed i~to an 
able lawyer and prominent man of affairs is ]ranc1s S. allbr1dge, a 
great-grandson of the pioneer Elijah. Born some forty odd years ago, 
he received his education from the Belleville High School and the Upper 

v Canada Canada Colleg • Possessed of the traditional family taste for law 
he was articled with his uncle, the .tion. Lewis Wallbridge, • C., of J 

Bell ville. After spending the last year of his articles with the firm 
of Flint and Sherry, he was called to the ·Bar in 1884, and after a 
couple of years, entered for a short time in partnership with Francis 
Marskell; and after the dissolution of that partnership continued con­
tinued the practice of law in Belleville by himself. Entering the arena 
of municipal politics he soon found success, for after serving as alder­
man for four years he was elected Mayor of the Gity of Belleville in 
1893. "The Globe", in a special article, says of him: "Having succeed­
ed to the business of his uncle, the Hon. Lewis Wallbridge, Q.C., late 
Chief Justice or· Manitoba, he has won for himself a deservedly high rep­
utation as a man of ability and integrity. Evidence of this is furnished 
in the fact of his elevation to the Mayor's chair at an age when most 
men with a predilection for public life regard the position of alderman 
as a distant dream." 

He has in his possession many old heirloo s of the family; among 
others may be mentioned the first large mirror brought to eyer's Creek; 
it was carried in his grandmother's arms when sh made the journey 
from Kingston on horseback. Another relic is an old musket, supposed 
to have been brought from the United States by Asa Wallbridge in I790, 
and to hav seen service during th Revolutionary War. There is also 
a rooking chair a hundred years old, and some mahogany furniture made 
in the ~tates in the time of President Adams. 

The pioneer, Elijah Wallbridge, died at Trenton in I842, and was 
buried in the St. Thomas churchyard, Belleville .• His wife, Margaret 
Halloway, died at lton, Saratoga county, N.Y. ·~ in I792. b;lias, a son 
of the Pioneer, served as an officer in the militia in the yon Macken­
zie Rebellion. He married his wife, Olive Shelley, when on a hunting 
expedition in ew York State: her father kept the hotel at Watertown 
where Elias was staying. 



THE VANDEVlATER E l\lliLY. 
---------------------The many descendants of the Vandewater family to be found in Prince 

Edward, Hastings and Lennox counties are of Dutch descent. The family 
came from Holland and settled in New York when that plac , ~i~s~obecame a 
British possession. They removed to Boston, where they carried on a 
large printing business, some of the members being ~nown as the "~ing's 
Printers, They must have have been persons of cons1derable stand1ng, fo 
Vandewater street in New York City was named after the family; and for 
services rendered to the British Government, James Vandewater, who was 
afterwards the Canadian pioneer, received a grant of land on Chesapeake 
Bay, in the State of Maryland, to which State he removed prior to the 
war of Independence. When the Colonies renounced their allegiance to the 
0rown, James threw in his lot with the revolutionists and served under 
General ashington. He sent his family to Poughkeepsie as he found his 
home unsafe for them owing to the proximity of the coast and of the 
Indians, who were in sympathy with the British. As he did not return to 
Maryland until peace was declared, it is to be assumed that he remained 
with the army until the conclusion of the war. But on his return home he 
found his land taken up by squatters, whom he was unable to dispossess 
owing to the unsettled state of the country and the law. It is narrated 
how that, in a fit of anger at finding his property in such a plight, 
he burned his deeds to the land and left the country, because he thought 
there was no justice to be obtained. 

James Vandewater made his way from Poughkeepsie to Oswego, thence to 
Hay, whers he settled about I795. He died in I833; the homestead at thi 
place being still in the possession of one of his descendants. His sons 
John and Peter, made their way up the Bay as far as Sidney, where John 
bought lot 30, 2nd. concession of Sidney, and Peter, lots 29 and 30, in 
the 6th. concession of Sidney. \Vhen the latter settled, the northern par 
of the township was mostly bush. His nearest neighbor, a man named Sine, 
was three miles distant. A little adventure concerning the two may be 
related. One night Peter, hearing cries for assistance, took a torch 
and gun and made his way to the spot indicated by the sound, where he 
found Sine in a tree, surrounded by wolves. A few shots from Peter's 
gun, aided by the glare of the torch, put the wolves to flight and saved 
the besieged settler. . 

The old homestead of the eldest son of the Pioneer, which was bought 
and paid for a century ago by John Vandewater, has never had a mortgage 
recorded against it. This excellent selection of land in Sidney, situate 
as it is, about three miles from Belleville, is to-day in the possession 
of Harry ·dlton Vandewater, who in I887, married a daughter of James 
~~coun, and niece of Professor John ~acoun. - - - He is very fond of hun 
-ing and fishing and s~ hds a few weeks every fall in the back townships , 
On his return his friends invariably receive bountiful evidences of his 
skill as a sportsms.n. ''vith the help of his. brother,l!arshalll 1 he landed 
the largest fishsaid to have been ever caught in t he Bay of ~uinte water 
It was a sturgeon, which weighed I?O pounds, and was caught with a brook 
net in the Trent River. 



rrltlli VANDERVOORT FAMILY. - I 

-------------------The same good qualities which made the Pilgrim Fathers of New England 
made the pilgrim pioneers of the Bay of Quinte. The members of each 
proudly remembered band were mostly drawn from Puritan stock and Dutch 
families· but while there is a marked decadency often to be observed in 
the form~r, the latter have multiplied so prolifically as to const~tute 
to-day no small proportion of the populations of Canada and the Un1ted 
States. Among these Dutch descendants, the Vandervoort family is one 
of the most numerous. It is to be found under forty different Anglican­
ized forms of the original Dutch VanDerVoort. 

Michael Paulus Van Der Voort, the pioneer of the Vandervoort family 
on the merican continent, coming from East Flanders prior to I640, 
settled in New Amsterdam. His marriage with Marie Rappelyea, or Rapelge, 
as it is now spelled, was the fifth solemnized in New Amsterdam. T~PV 
had a son Paul born on Long Island. He married Lysbeth Paulus D1 ck­
son and had a ~on Paul who married ~ulze Stoats. This Paul had a son, 

' ' ' ~icholas who married Abigail Halstead.She was of the same stock as 
Murat Haistead. Nicholas settled in Orange County and had five sons: 
John, Paul, Peter, villiam and Jonah, and one daughter, Martha. These 
children became the heads of numerous branches, to one of which belong­
ed Francis Vandervoort, the Sidney pioneer. He was a native of Dutchess 
County, and a weaver by trade, His great-grandson, Addison Vandervoort, 
of Hastings Uounty Registry office, has ~mong other old family papers, 
a well-preserved account book used by the Pioneer both before and after 
he came to uanada. Some of the entries were made II? years ago ( ote; 
probably, I60 years ago,at the time of this copying- 5-8-1947). 
The writing is good and the ink does not appear to have faded in the 
least. The oldest account is with one Abel Hunt, who, we learn, was 
charged sixteen shillings for weaving a coverlet, one shilling per yard 
for weaving a piece of woolen cloth, the same price for linsey woolsey, 
and eight shillings for ten yards of linen. Some of the recorded early 
Sidney items state that when board cost five shillings a week, wages 
were a shilling a day. 

Before coming to Canada, the Pioneer had married Hanna Acker in 
Dutchess County, and his family in I802 consisted of seven sons and a 
daughter. Realizing that their children would have a better chance to 
acquire homes for themselves in the new province of Upper Canada, the 
parents resolved to emigrate. With their children and all their worldly 
effects, they followed the ohawk River as far as they could in a small 
open boat. On a fine April morning, with hearts that must have been 
sad and minds that were perpl xed, they paddled away from the land of 
thei: birth.to a destination unknown to them. ~'allowing the usual route, 
haul~ng the1r boat between water stretches and sleeping under it when 
overtaken by night, they reached in safety the shore of Lake Ontario 
at the mouth of the Oswego River. Easily making their way from there, 
they crossed to the Canadian shore. They then proceeded up the bay of 
Quinte until they landed at hite•s Creek. There they remained a few 
years, b~t settled on lot 17 in the 2nd concession of Sidney. As by 

" ~ the t1me the 'Vandervoorts arrived, earlier settlers on th F t 
had made a good beginning and the weav . e ron 
tr~de from the srart whi;h v~s a d er Plon~er was able to ply his 
enJoyed. ' n a vantage h1s neighbors had not 
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although vandervoort had not emigrated from political prejudices, his 
loyalty was never questioned. hen war was declared in IBI2 he and his 
five sons, the youngest being only fifteen years old, took up arms in 
defence of their adopted country. They served in the Hastings militia, 
in which the father held a commission. - - - as the Pioneer commenced the 
work of home-making with a capital of seventeen dollars, the family were 
forced to do vri thout many ordinary conveniences. en a ·well vva.s a 
luxury, and the water required for domestic purposes had to be carried 
a distance of a mile and more through the woods. Francis Vandervoort 
died in 1836, in his seve~nty-second year, and his wife in I850, in her 
eighty-fifth year. They were married in 1784, and had lived together as 
husband and wife fifty-two years. 

'11he elder William Vandervoort, acting on the suggestion of a school 
teacher from ~atertown, N.Y., early grasped the future possibilities of 
the cheese industry in the Bay of Quinte districts. After gleaning all 
possible information regarding the industry, he went to faterto~m in 
I848, accompanied by his wife, and learned the cheese-maker's trade. 
On his return he established a small cheese factory on his farm. So 
far as can be learned, this formed the nucleus of the cheese industry 
in Eastern Ontario. 1he cheese factory was supplemented by a box 
factory. The cheese factory was absorbed by a larger one built in the 
neighborhood; but the box factory remains and at present turns out be­
tween 75,000 and 100,000 boxes each year. illiam R. Vandervoort assist~ 
-ed largely in these enterprises, and eventually became a partner with 
his father. 
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CAPTAIN. JOID\l D. VAN ALSTINE. -
--~-~----------------------Captain John D. Van Alstine son of Abram Van Alstine, and great-grand­

son of Major Peter Van Alstin~, the pioneer, was born in Prince Edward 
County in I842. His rather was a shoemaker by trade, before the.advent 
of shoe factories and ready-made shoes, and carried on an extens1ve bus­
iness. In I845 he removed with his family to New Haven, New York. He was 
induced to make this change by John Williams, his br~ther-in-law, who.had 
already settled there. After living ight years at New Haven, and do1ng 
a successful business, Abram Van Alstine returned to Prince Edward County, 
and lived there until his death. He was well known and very much respect 
ed in the community where he had seen the country transformed from a 
wilderness into fruitful fields and prosperous communities, Cornelius 
Van Alstine, Abram's father, was one of the early magistrates in Athol, 
Prince Edward County, and Captain Van Alstine well remembers hearing his 
grandfatherrelate anecdotes of people driving with ox teams for miles to 
his grandfather's house to be married. At this time local preachers had 
no authority to perform the ceremony, and magistrates were important 
personages in the communities where they lived and were held/in respect. 

Captain John D. Van Alstine recalls his frequent visits, when a boy, 
to see his great-grandmother Ferguson, who lived to be one hundred and 
one years old. On these visits she would relate reminiscences of the 
Revolutionary War, having lived near New York during that perilous period. 

Captain John D. Van Alstine, from boyhood, yearned to follow our inland 
seas, and the long-desired opportunity came when he was seventeen years 
of age, and secured the position of cook on a sailing vessel at six 
dollars per month. Yaung/Alstine did not know much about cooking, but the 
menu was a plain one and he had full confidence in his ability to succee~ 
He was soon employed before the mast and at the age of twenty-two became 
sailing master of the "Gold Hunter". In I866, he sailed on the steamer 
"Maize", of Toledo, and later was captain of the "British ueen". He was 
three years first mate of the schooners "New Dominion" and"Union Jack" 
and held the position of captain of the schooners "Ontario" and "Huron'', 
and upon the steamers "Saxon" and "Clinton". He built the steamer "Iona" 
of Trenton, which he ran for eight years. He. is at present captain of 
th st- amer "vv. J. Carter", which sails from Buffalo to Georgian Bay and 
Lake Huron ports. 

As will be seen from this sketch, Captain Van Alstine has followed 
the lakes for forty-five years, and is familiar with the ports from 
Gaspe to Duluth and Chicago. Captain Van Alstine has lived in Trenton 
for many years, and is a sterling citizen in all that word implies. In 
politics he is a Liberal. 



JA:MES THIRD, M.D. -
---~----~------~ 

The historical data that follows uoncerning the early history of 

the Kingston General Hospital, was gathered from its its early records 

by Dr. Third, of Kingston, and are included in an article contributed 

by him to the "Canada Lancet", published in December, I903. Dr. Third 

has been one of the medical staff of the hospital for many years, and 

for five years was superintendent •. 

~he institution is of great historical interest, not only as being 

the first of its kind to be founded in Ontario, but also because the 

building itself for several years served as the Parliament House for 

the United Canadas. 

The genesis of the hospital is traced by Dr. Third to the efforts 

of the Kingston Compassionate· Society, whose work was taken over by 

the Female Benevolent Association in I82I. The latter organization 

had made such substantial headway that in 1833 they obtained from the 

government a grant of three thousand pounds towards erecting a perman­

ent and suitable hospital; and a committee, consisting of Dr. Sampson, 

Dr. Armstrong and Thomas Rogers, architect, visited Montreal before 

deciding upon the plans for the building to be erected. In their 

report it is stated that they proceeded as far as Williamsburgh, where 

they engaged a special conveyance, as the regular stage was proceeding 

at the leisurely rate of four and one-half miles an hour. Beyond this 

outlay, their expense account does not seem to indicate any lavish ex­

penditure. It was kept in pounds, shillings and pence, and it is repro­

duced from their report on file: 
Kingston to Williamsburgh -------------------­
Extra stage, Williamsburgh to Montreal -------

Return trip -----------------------------------­
Extras -----------------------------------------

3 
0 

13 

s. d. 
0 · o 
0 0 
2 0 
7 6 
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JAMES THIRD, M. D. - and the .KINGSTON GENERAL HOSPITAL (Continued) -

-------------------------------------------------------------------Upon their return the building was erected, but the association lack­
ed the funds to complete and make it habitable, until assisted by a 
further grant from the government in I83?. 

During the Rebellion Of I83?-38 the late Colonel W. H. Bonnycastle 
was instructed to establish a military hospital in the neighbourhood 
of Kingston, and this building was utilized by the Government o~ 
that purpose from May, 1838, to June, !839. 

In I84I, at the urgent request of ord Sydenham, the building 
was once again leased to the Government, and became the ~arliament 
House of uanada from I84I to 1844, when the seat of government was 
removed from Kingston. The rental, some two hundred and thirty-eight 
pounds, sufficed to restore the building to its original purpose, and 
the institution, under broad and intelligent management, has grown 
into the splendid hospital of the present day, with two hundred beds 
for patients, and with every facility for medical and surgical aid 
to the afflicted. 

In 1862, was added the Watkins wing; in 1890 the Nickle wing; and 
the Doran wing in 1893. The surgical operating theatre was the gift 
of the late Dr. K. N. Fenwick. It has a seating capacity for one 
hundred students, and clinics are held daily from 9 to I2 a. m. 
The floor is of slate, and the surrounding walls of marble. A hand­
some stone building, recently finished, is the "Nurses' Home." 

Dr, Third is the son of Alexander ~hird, who married Uhristian 
Craighead. His grandfather, John Third, came from the north of 
Scotland, and resided for a time in Kingston, but ultimately settled 
in the county of Northumberland. His father, Alexander Third, also 
~de his home in that county, and it was in the county of ~orthum­
berland that James Third was born and received his early education. 

He graduated in medicine at Toronto, and was house surgeon at the 
General Hospital. Thence, after five years spent in active practice 
at Trenton, Dr. Third, n !896, came to Kingston where he has ever 
since resided. During early all of this time h~ has been identified 
with Queen's University and with the Kingston General Hospital. 
At present he is the Professor of· Medicine at Queen's, is one of the 
medical staff of the hospi~al and is, moreover, actively engaged in 
the practice of his profession. 

He married Jean, daughter of Robert Cook, and granddaughter of 
Captain obert Gock, of the Royal Navy, who was promoted from mid­
shipman to the rank of lieutenant for gallantry at the famous victory 
of Trafalgar. 

They have one child, Master James Reginald. 
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/they 

--------------------~------------------------------------------------thencethey procee~ed to Kingston. . 
Sylvanus v~s so disappointed with the country that he determ1ned 

to return to Long Island when his teams secured the rest the~ so badly 
needed; but in the meantime he v~s persuaded to take possess1on of a 
new log house. Then one little incident after another cropped up to 
deter him from commencing his return journey. Some one needed a house, 
and as Sylvanus was a builder of experience, i~ was only natu:al tha~ 
he should undertake t he task. On his success 1n that rork, h1s serv1ces 
were in demand by the pioneers throughout the settlement. It became too 
late to think of returning that year; he postponed his journey until the 
next fall. Then, when the time came, he found he had loaned out the con­
siderable sum of money which he brought with him, and he could not get 
it back for some further length of time because wheat, which was the 
pioneer's only security, had first to be threshed by horses treading 
it out, then ground at Kingston and afterwards shipped as flour to 
Montreal, to be sold and the money, after all deductions had been made, 
would not return until t he following May. It was not until 1824 or 1825 
that cash was first paid for whea ·n Prince Edward. The first buyer 
was Charles Bockus, who aftervvards became an f. P. The next was Ron. 
Billa Flint. These two brokers paid money for the wheat, which they had 
ground and shipped to Montreal ;but later lv1ontreal started mills and bOug 
bought the ~"Jheat direct. s Sylvanus S-prague could not afford to leave 
canada without receiving his money he accepted a proposition to work 
Benjamin Smith's homestead on shares. As events progressed and the 
opportunity for him to return arrived, he found that the links which 
bound him to the Bay settlement were too trong to be broken. He remain­
in Sophiasburgh for twelve years, when, i ~832, he moved to amelias­
burgh. 

Important places of honor and trust in the social, commercial 
and political life of Prince Edward have been held by the Spragues /as 
for almost a century. Samuel Sprague married uatharine Smith; and/his 
children grew up aBe/married,,and acquired homes for themselves. His 
daughter Hannah married Ebenezer Reynolds for her second husband; the 
village of ellington now stands on the lot on which they settled in 
Hillier. Farmenus, a son, settled in Sophiasburgh. tie was captain of 
a company of militia he raised during the Rebellion of 183?; it was not 
taken into service, but repre entatives rrom it were included in the 
composite company furnished by the county. Another son, Hallet, pur­
chased lot No. 4 on Big Island • . ~vlhen legislation was enacted granting 
the powers of local government to municipalities, he v~s elected a 
member of th~ first council of Sophiasburgh. His son, John A. Sprague, . 
alre~dy ment1oned, has taken a keen and prominent interest in public 
affa1rs. tie has been an active factor in municipal and provinc·al 
politics as well. l''or fifteen years he was a member of the t .ownship 
council of Sophiasburgh, occupying on different occasions the success­
ive positions of councillor, deputy reeve and reeve. As a Liberal 
Reformer he was elected to the Legislative Assembly in I886; he was sub­
sequently re-elected, and the two terms comprise a representation of 
eighr years hile serving in ~rliament for Prince Edward County he 
participated in the celebration of the centennial anniversary of the 
establishment of representative government in Upper Canada, and still 
preserves the medal struck upon that occasion and presented to him. 
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------------------------~---------------------------------------~-----
It contains a relief medallion of Governor Simcoe, inscribed: "John 
Gratnes Simcoe Lieutenant -Governor, A,D. I79I, A.D. I?96". Upon the 
reverse side ~p:r::ears the legend, "Representative System Proclaimed, 
Kingston, July I6, I792. First Parliament opened, ~iagara, Sept. I?, 
I?92. Centennial celebrated, I892." And upon the same side is the in­
scription: "Upper Canada; since I86?, Ontario." 

His son, Grant Sprague, is a clever electrician and successful 
business man, to whom is entrusted the actual management of the Sprague 
Telephone Company. He and his father have been mainly instrumental in 
founding, promoting, organizing and successfully carrying on a very 
complete rural telephone system in Prince Edward County. 

ostrand Sprague was only three years old when his father emigrated 
to canada. He began business as a clerk in Demorestville, where he after 
_,~rds started for himself as a general merchant. Owing to ill-health 
he turned farmer, and for many years was the largest grower of hops in 
th county of Prince Edward; in fact, he came to be known as the "Hop 
King". He took an active interest interest in municipal affairs • .For 
seven years he was a member of the council; for six, Reeve of the 
township; and for one, Warden of the county. Being, in I897, elected a 
member of the county council he served for four consecutive years,during 
one of which he again served as varden. His eldest son is James Syl­
vanus Sprague, M.D., of Stirling, who is a graduate of Victoria and 
Trinity Universities and has won for himself a desirable professional 
reputation. He has recently been appointed by the Council of the Col­
lege of Physicians and Surgeons of Ontario a member of their Board of 
Examiners, and is the author of various medical treatises one of 
which, his work, entitled "Medical Ethics and Cognate SubJects" has 
been endorsed by such distinguished members of the profession a~ 
Doctors Buller,Osler, Geikie, Britton, Lapthorn and E, B. Smith. 

See VII. The Nostrand Sprague Branch: 
---------------------1--------------

(I) Dr. James s. Sprague, m. Charlotte Haggarty, ex-M.P.P.; 

Sylvanus Sprague -

settled Stirling. Issue: 
(a) Mary L. (Girdwood, Perth), 
( b • ) Annie , and 
( c ·.) Barton. - - - - - - - -

CHILDREN & Grandchildren: 

I. Laweence Sprague -

2. Elijah " 
3. Foster " 
4. George " 
5. Catharine " 

6. Sylvanus " 
&. Nostrand 



THE SHORTT Fa viiLY. -
--------------------

The pioneer of the Shortt family - Adam Shortt - was of German birth 
and extraction. He ~~s born in dtrasburg in I?60, in which centre of 
German culture he probably received a good education, though, in the 
middle of the eighteenth century, the particular technical education -
-now the pride of Germany in every branch of trade - which would have 
serviceable to him in weavin , to which trade he was ap:nrenticed, was 
not then available. Afte serving three years, weaving cotton, linen 
and wool, he became a full-fledged journeyman, qualified to earn his 
living, which he did, travelling from place to place as the exigencies 
of his vocation demanded. ~~hile still a young man he left Germany for 
America, and arrived,after an eighteen weeks' passage, at ew York. 
'l'his was during the progress of the evolutionary vvar, in which he 
served for some time with the British, and then withdrew himself and 
his services without acquainting his commanding officer with his inten­
tions. - - - - He is next discovered in New Jersey, occupied as a 
weaver, a most necessary, useful and remunerative occupation in a new 
country at a time when mills and factories had not interposed to blight 
the ancient handicraft. There he lived and wove for fifteen years, and 
acqui ed a reputation for industry andintegrity. Being in sympathy 
with a British connection for the colonies, and averse from trusting 
himself and his means to an untried republic, he left ~ew Jersey about 
the year I800, and with his wife - he had married a Miss Odell - and 
four children, came to Prince Edvrerd County. He settled on the shore of 
the Bay of Quinte, at Green Point, Sophiasburgh, and there followed his 
trade as a weaver, his services being in constant request with pioneer 
ramilies for twenty miles around. - - - - During the Pioneer's long 
residence at Green Point his prosperity grew apace: from time to time 
he bought land, until at his death he had purchased and improved about 
six hundred acres, which then passed to his sons, who, while their 
father was mainly employed with his weaving, were the true pioneer 
farmers of the family in the district. - - - - He lived to be an extreme 
-ly old man, dying in 1854, aged ninety-four years. - - - - 'l'he Pioneer'~ 
daught~r, 1ary, narried Levi Roblin, and their grandson Redmon P. 
Roblin, is at present Premier of Manitoba (1904}. ' 



THE ROBLIN FAMILIES.-

John Roblin, who was the first of the Roblins to come into Uanada, 

and at the time of the outbreak of the Revolutionary War was settled witt 

his brother, Stephen, in New Jersey, was of English or Welsh descent. 

He tried to remain a non-participant in the war; but as he sat on his 

stoop one evening, a party of Gontinental scouts came by, and, without 

any provocation or previous warning of any kind, fired fourteen shots 

at the house. Having ransacked the premises, they demanded that they 

be told where the money was concealed; and in order to make them divulge 

the hiding place, John Roblin, although already wounded in the knee, 

was stripped nearly naked;. and his brother, Stephen, was hung to a tree 

by his thumbs. fhe party, being baulked in their dearch, became grossly 

offensive; one man pointed his musket at John Roblin's wife (putting the 

point of the bayonet to her breast), and dared her to call George the 

Third of England, her King. She did dare; but just as the fellow was 

about to fire, a comrade with a finer sense of decency and manliness, 

knocked the musket aside. 

John Roblin seems to have been taken prisoner, as he was placed 

in a rebel hospital, where h~s treatment v~s so neglected that he became 

a lifelong cripp e. In his absence, his wife complained to General 

~ashington of the treatment they had received; and the family were not 

again disturbed. 

The Roblins were among the families who came to Uanada in the 

jor VanAlstine party; and landed at Adolphustown on the 6th. June, 
1784. 

In the records of the first town meetings held in Adolphus town, 

dated 1784, appear the names of John Robl
1
·n 

, Owen Roblin, Sr., and Owen 
Hoblin, Jr. Dr. Canniff states that Stephen Roblin also came with his 
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brother John. 

In the annual return of the inhabitants of Adolphustown taken in 

IBI2, John Roblin's name appears; but as there is no recurrence of it 

afterwards, or of that of his wife, it is evident that his death must 

have occurred about that time. His wife was Elizabeth ~oore, who is 

mentioned in Playter's History of Methodism as being the s6cond larg­

est contributor to the dol:phusto,t1J.1 Methodist Church, which was built 

in 1792, on Baul Huff's land, and was the first Methodist Church in v 

in Upper canada. Dr. Canniff states that after her husband's death 

she removed to Sophiasburg, where she bought a hundred acres of land 

for twenty-five dollars (which she paid in weaving) and that she her­

self cut down the trees and built her own log cabin. She subsequently 

married John Canniff, t~e founder of Canniffton, and great-uncle of 

the historian. 

So far as can now be ascertained, the family of John and Eliza­

beth Roblin comprised: (I) John, (2) David, (3) Owen P., (4) Philip, 

(5) a daughter, who married Colonel Ruttan and settled in Sophias­

burg, (6) Nancy, (7) Mary, (8) Elizabeth, who married Benjamin Clapp 

and settled on Hay Bay, and (9) another'daughter, whom it is supposed, 

married a Gerolamy. 

John Roblin, the eldest son of the Pioneer's family, was among 

the first converts under Darius Dunham's labors in the province, and 

became a zealous worker for the Methodist church and a popular local 

preacher. He was elected to arliament for ~idland; but being opposed 

to the Family Compact party, which was then in power, his seat was 

declared vacant, the reason being that, as a local preacher, he could 

not sit in Parliament. His constituency re-electing him, his seat 



'l•HE ROBLIN FAMILIES - Continued - 3. -
-~-----------------------------------------------------------------
was again declared vacant by the same party and for the same reason. 

Returning home, he was elected for the third time; but he died before 

the next session commenced, and thus evaded that which threatened to 

become a serious cause of dissatisfaction, if not of disturbance. 

In the returns of disbanded troops and loyalists mustered on 

the 5th. October, 1?84, appear the names of Owen P. and Philip Roblin; 

from which it is to be inferred that each of these pioneers served in 

the British cause, and, owing to the liberal policy of the Government 

in granting two hundred acres of land to each United Empire Loyalist, 

were each in possession of large tracts of land. Owen P. Roblin, who 

was born in I??4, married Mary Dulmage, who was born in 1?80. They 

settled on the Bay Front in Ameliasburgh, about h lf a mile east of 

Rednerville. 

Philip Roblin moved from Adolphustown into ~ophiasburgh, where 

he located his land at Roblin's Mills, or Green Point, on the .High 

Shore. In addition to clearing the forest, he managed to build and 

work a grist mill, which proved not only a success to the enterprising 

miller, but a boon to the settlers for miles around, saving them their 

long and toilsome trips to Kingston, and later to Napanee. When Philip 

Roblin died, his son, Philip, came into possession of the property, 

which he continued to extend and enlarge in various ways, until Rob­

lin's Mills in Sophiasburgh became one of the principal business 

centres of the county. In addition to grinding grain, lumber, shingle 

and shipbuilding enterprises were carried on for many years, and a 

general store and shipping warehouse were added. Several circumstan-

ces tended to bring about the decline of the place and its industries; 

and the stream which supplied the water-power has partly dried up, in 
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consequence, doubtless, of the removal of the forest. ----~--------------------------

The founder of Roblin's Mills, or Green Point, married Prudence 

Platt, by whom he had nine children; many of his descendants lived to be 

distinguished men and women of their county. A son, John P, Roblin, was 

for a number of years a prominent member of the old Refor.m party in the 

Upper Canada Legislature, sitting both before and after the Mackenzie 

Rebellion, sixteen years in all. He was defeated only one , and that was 

in I837, when the cry of Liberty disloyalty was raised; but at the next 

poll he was elected by a sweeping majority. Notwithstanding that the 

Premier, n-. Draper, was a Conservative, he appointed John P. Roblin 

Registrar of Prince Edward County, a position he held up to the time 
of his death. 

Another descendant of the family distinguished in Canadian politics 

is a grandson of Levi Roblin, who was a son of the pioneer owner of 

Roblin's Mills. The Hon. odmond Palen Roblin has been Premier and 

Minister of Agriculture and Railway Commissioner for the Province of 

Manitoba since I900. Born in Sophiasburgh in I853, he was educated at 

the Albert College, Belleville. Marrying Adelaide DeMille in I875, he 
migrated to 

nitoba in !880. Locating at Carman, he carried on farm-

ing on a large scale; and, with headquarters in Winnipeg, became an 

extensive grain dealer. He was elected to "the Legislative Assembly pf 

Manitoba in I888; and attended the Coronation festivities in England 
in !902. 

The remaining children of the old pioneer, John Roblin, with 

their descendants, have married into many of the leading and oldest 

families in the county, and are widely scatt red. One daughter married 



~.rHE ROBLIN FAMILIES CONTINUED - 5. -

--------------------------------~--------~--------------------------
Colonel Peter Ruttan and settled in S6phmasburgh. Nancy Roblin married 

Colonel William Ketcheson and settled in Sidney. Miry Roblin married 

~rvel Garrison , the pioneer of the family of that name, and lived on 

Hay Bay. 

Rev. Stephen .Herbert Roblin, son of George E. Roblin and great'­

grandson of Owen Roblin, the pioneer, was born October 4th., I858, in 

Hallowell, and after attending the common schools, graduated from St. 

Lawrence University, Canton, N. Y., recei ing his Bachelor's degree, .. , 

and afterwards his Doctorate, in I896. Having been called to the minis­

try, he labored in his profession at Genoa and Victor, New York, and 

Bay City, Michigan, and for th past fifteen years has been president 

of the Massachusetts Universalist Convention. He is chaplain of the 

canadian Club at Boston, chaplain of the Ancient and Honorable Artil­

lery Company of Boston, a Knight Templar and thirty-second degree Mason 

He belongs to the Boston Art Club and the University Club of Boston. 



THE RATHBUN CO NY. -

-------------------'l'he athbuns and their business interests transformed the meagre 
settlement of Culbertson's Wharf or ill Point into the flourishing 
town of Deseronto. The business was founded by H.B.Rathbun about 
I849 and for years was carried on under the firm name of H.B.Rathbun 
&. So~. In I$84, by an Act of Parliament, "The Rathbun Company" was 
incorporated. . . . . 

~.rhe company owns large areas of t1mber l1m1 ts, and their 1nterests 
include the Bay of Quinte Railroad, with a mil~ge of one hundred and 
twelve miles; the Thousand Islands Railroad, wh1ch ex~ends from the 
~housand Islands Junction to uananoque; the Oshawa a11way Company of 
Oshawa · the Canadian Portland Cement vvorks; a fleet of vessels upon the 
Great Lakes and the St. Lawrence; car shops, ship yards, etc. An in 
addition to their lumber interests, they maintain mills at various 
poi~ts for the manufacture of doors, sashes, posts, shingles and the 
like. 

'l'he management of the business for years rested upon E. W. athbun, 
son of H. B. Rathbun, who was the first Mayor of the town of Deseronto, 
and continued to fill that position by acclamation until his death. He 
was a useful and prominent citizen of the Dominion, and he served as 
one of the royal commission to examine and report upon the forests of 
Canada. He also served upon the Board of the Kingsto chool of Mines 
and as Trustee of ~ueen's University. - - -He died in November , I903, 
and his son, E. Walter Rathbun, now fills his place in the m nagement 
of the Rathbun Company. The latter married Miss Blair, of Lunan House, 
Scotland. In !905 he was elected M.L.A. for East Hastings. -

' ---------~-----------------~----------------------~------------------

TH CORBY FAMILY.-

Henry Corby, late member of the Provincial Parliament of Ontario, 
and founder of the village of <Jorbyville, and of t he great business now 
conducted at that place by his son Henry Corby, was born at Hanwell, 
County ~dddlesex, now a part of the city of London, England; but his 
son and namesake, Henry, (who is now sole owner of the milling, distil­
ling and exporting business founded by him) is a native of Canada, 
having been born at Belleville, in I85I. Henry Corby, the elder, mar-
ried ~tilda {illiams, and had several children. ~ 

Henry Corby, the younger, was educated at the Belleville Public School 
and Rockwood Academy, and after receiving a thorough commercial course A 

entered upon the management of his father's business. Of his two broth­
ers, Gharles married Ida Taylor, and settled in Seattle, in the State of 
washington, and James married Gussie Soles, and settled in the city of 
Chicago. Henry uorby marr ed in IB72, ·Mlria Courtney and their family 
consists of three daughter - ; Tilly, who ~rried C.S.Laidlaw nd has one 
child,., a da UB:hter, ELrza beth; Helen R. , who married ..If , C. T. b''lara, and 
sett~ed at ottawa; and Alice A.M., who resides with her parents at the 

home in Belleville. Henry Corby was elected to Parliament by acclamation. 
in I~es, and through succeeding elections retained his seat until 1900, 
when he ret ired from ..t-a.rliament. He owns .rvussissaga Park, and was partly 
responsible for the erection of the fine Hotel uinte at Belleville & 
th~ bridge spanning the Bay and connecting the counties of Hastings ~nd _rJr1nce Ea.-ward. 



THE PURDY FAMILY. -

At the close of the American Revolution it became evident that, both 
from choice and necessity many of those who had been identified with the 
Royal cause would be comp~lled to seek new homes under the protection of 
the British Crown. The first expedition to be fitted out, had for its 
destination, New Brunswick or Nova Scotia. Many members of these exped­
itions ultimately found their way to Ontario, but this province - at that 
time the Western wilderness of Quebec - was not their original destin­
ation. The beginning of Upper Canada dates from the drawin of la~ds 
by that party ot loyalists, who established the "First Town , or "Klng­
ston", still known as the township of Kingston. They sailed from New York 
in I783, probably about the first of June, occupying six small vessels 
under convoy of a British man-of-war. They landed at Sorel, where the 
majority of them remained until the s ring of !784. Among the members 
of this party weDe Michael Grass, Barnabus Day, Gilbert Purdy, and other~, 
who appear as the original lot owners along the Bay shore, on the Front 
of Kingston . 

Th ae men pushed forward, selected their location near the head waterE 
of the St. Lawrence, and returned for their families and friends who had 
re~ined at Sorel. The project of planting a British colony upon the 
ruins of the old French settlement of Cataraqui, was cordially supported 
by the Imperial Government; the township was surveyed, the lots drawn and 
the entire party settled upon their farms in the neighborhood of Collins 
Bay before the summer of !784. 

Elsewhere has been graphically described the privations and hard­
ships of these loyal pioneers; many of them had noexperienc ,in arming; 
; there were among them but few mechanics; they had practically no live 
stock, and but few tools of any kind, and their stores were practically 
exhausted. To some extent they were aided by the Imperial Government, 
but the Gomndssary Department was not administered with very marked 
efficiency. 

In spite of these adverse circumstances, the loyalists soon found the 
their farms rapidly appreciating in value, and the majority of hem left 
their children well to do; yet, to-day, in many cases, not only the 
estates, but the very names of the first settlers have disappeared. 
Some fa~~ies, however, havs_ shown far more virility; and the descend­
ants of G1lbert Purdy, take them all in all, shine by contrast with 
many families that might be mentioned, who also trace their ancestry to 
the first expedition that laid the foundations of Ontario. - - H·s 
precept and example will be an inspiration to his descendants in r ~tain­
ing the honorable distinction that has accompanied the name of Purdy 
from the first hour that British civilization found a refuge and est~b­
lished a new home in the vast empire of Western Canada. 



THE PONTON FAMILY. -
----------------- Upper 

Mungo Ponton .D. the founder of the Ponton family im7Canada 
was a Scottish ;ffice~, who served as surgeon in the cam~ron Highlanders, 
,~nd, having retired, accepted a military land grant o~ s1.x hundred .acres 
in Seymour township. He settled near Campbellford a~d the congen1al 
surroundings of a number of fellow settlers who were all ex-officers of 
the british army. Wh he arrived in the country, which was about the 
year I83I, he was ao _ nied by his wife and family, the youngest son, 
James Wemyss Ponton being at the time about sixteen years old. 
·rhe Pioneer had married Grace Nisbet in Inverness, which was the head­
quarters of his regiment and the capital of .those Highlands in which ~he 
Ulan Cameron are so st ong. tle lived to be an old man, and when he d1ed 
had made a close approach to the a e of ninety years, His wife also 
attained an old age, being over eig ty years at the time of her death. 

Archibald Ponton the eldest canadian son in the family, organized in 
!862 and was first ~olonel in command of the 15th. Battalion, now known 
as the Argyle Light Infantry. Besides being two years with the uornwall 
Provisional Battalion, which formed a unit of uanadian troops organized 
under British officers, he saw foreign service in the West Indies. In 
his civil capacity, he acted as clerk in the Hastings Division Court for 
several years, dealt in real estate and farmed land situated near B lle­
ville. 

William Hamilton Ponton, second son in the Pioneer·' s family, was a 
barrister by profession, who held the position of deputy clerk of the 
Grown and was registrar of the county for over forty years. Besides, 
he enjoyed a large private law practice, first in partnership with the 
Hon. John Ross and John Bell. K.C., and later as a member of the well­
known firm of Ponton, Falkiner & Denmark. He was one of the f·rst 
Canadian directors of the Grand Trunk Railway, gained some prominence in 
municipal -affairs, and was for two years lWiyor of the city of Belleville. 

James Wemyss Ponton was a farmer and deputy registrar of the county 
for forty years. He moved from Seymour township into Thurlow, where he 
bought two hundred acres in the second concession. He married about 1853, 
Anna Hutton, of Sidney, daughter of a William Hutton, who was first 
warden of the county of Hastings, and deputy superintendent of education 
under Dr. Ryerson, and who, as secretary of the Board of Agriculture of 
uanada, resided a good deal in Toronto and uebec. James vfemyss Ponton 
died in 1893, when about seventy years old; his wife predeceased him by 
five years. 'lhe eldest of their children, William Nisbet Ponton, is a lead 
-ing barrister in Bellevill • Educated at Upper Canada College and Univer­
sity of Toronto, where he was silver medallist in modern languages and 
graduated • A. in !878, he was called to the Har in I88I. Like his toreb 
bears, he has displayedan active interest in military affairs, While 
attending the university, he was a member of the University company in 
the ~ueen's Own Rifles. Later, in I88I, he was gazetted as lieutenant 
of the I5th. battalion, and subsequently received promotion as captain 
major and lieutenant-colonel. He retired from the command of the regi~­
ent in 1902, and for his twenty-five years' service was awarded the Long 
Service decoration. .tc'or a number of years he was an alderman and is at 
present a member of the High School Board. Wh n representing the Belle­
ville Board of Trade at the Congress of the Empire, held at Montreal in 
1903, he moved the resolution that ~ewfoundland and uanada should be con­
federated under the one administration. The resolution was conveyed to 
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the British Colonial Secretary, the Right Hon. Joseph Chamberlain, 
who forwarded it to the Premier of Ne~oundland. The Canadian Clubs 
took up the matter and the mover of the resolution lectured before the 
Ottawa and Toronto clubs on the subject. 

Colonel Ponton is president of the County of Hastings Law Associa­
tion; his eldest son is on the staff of the Grand Trunk Railway at 
MOntreal. He resides with his family and sister, Miss Grace Ponton, 
at the Hutton homestead farm in Sidney. 

Douglas Ponton, son of the late James W. Ponton, is a prominent 
estate agent in Toronto, is high up in Masonic circles and was one of th 
the many Belleville head boys at Upper Canada College. 

Edward George Ponton, eldest son of Archibald Ponton (above), was 
adjutant of the Midland battalion in 1885, and as such took part with 
the Belleville company in the celebrated charge at Batoche. He married 
Elizabeth, daughter of E. P. Hannaford, chief engineer, G.T.R., and 
died some years ago. 

Archibald W. Ponton is a land surveyor of prominence in the North­
West Territories. The daughters of Colonel Archibald Ponton married 
respectively: A. J. Sharpe, of Chicago; E. D. Armour, K. c., and 
Villiers Sankey, city surveyor of Toronto; A. Montizambert; Manager 
Bank of Montreal of Lindsay; and Hayter Reid, of ~uebec. 
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... - THE NICKLE FAMILY. -

-----------------
Thomas Nickle of Swinton, Berwick-on-'l'weed, Scotland, mwrried r­

garet enton. Their eldest son, William Nickle (born July, I8I2) came to 
canada in I83I. He made his way by batteaux ~rom ~uebec to Ottawa, and 
thence to Kingston, where he remained until h1s lamented demise on the 
29th. day of ~ebruary, 1890. 

Although but a lad, \!illiam Nickle seems to have grasped the great 
possibilities of Ontario, and his letters home from.the ~ay of his ar­
rival urge · npen his parents the desirability of e~grat1on. It happen­
ed that soon afterwards his father came with a whaling vessel that 
landed at Quebec. Here he was welcomed by a firm of Scottish shipwrights, ~ 
who hastened to avail themselves of his services and urged him to settle 
permanently at ~uebec. He did remain with them for some months, and a 
quaint and most interesting correspondence in the meantime was carried on 
between the home-loving old Scotchman and his ambitious, self-reliant 
son at Kingston. The father was continually urging the son to join him 
at ~uebec; upon the other hand William Nickle strongly urged his father 
to send for the family and establish their home in Kingston. In the end 
Thomas Nickle returned to Scotland, and about 1834, with his wife and 
children, set sail for canada, fully intending to joim his son at King­
ston. Upon arriving .at Quebec their vessel was quarantined, as there 
was an epidemic of cholera , but they had been duly passed and were 
proceeding to Montreal, when a child of one of the passengers suddenly 
died of croup. No sooner had they touched the nearest point, and report­
a death on board, than they were peremptorily ordered back to quarantine 
at Grosse Isle, near the city of ~uebec. This unfortunate occurrence led · 
to the most frightful consequences; many became infected with cholera 
and fully three-fourths of the unfortunate passengers perished; among 
the rest, 'rhoms.s Nickle and one of his children. 1Vlr. Nickle had been 
ordered to the hospital for some trifling indisposition. He became in­
fected with cholera, and that night his widow was curtly told that her 
husband was dead and buried. 

In spite of these crushing calamities she made her way to Kingston, 
Here qilliam Nickle welcomed the unfortunate family and became a true 
father to his brothers and sisters. They in their turn seem to have fully 
appreciated his efforts in their behalf. hey all lived to become well 
known among the best people of their adopted city. Years after one of the 
daughters married the late James ~rton, already mentioned, one of the 
most interesting men who ever lived in Kingston. brief notice of his 
career is not inappropriate in connection with the Nickle fandly. 

James orton was born August 29th., 1808, in the county a~ illaloe 
Ireland, and came to Kingston in I824. fter a brief experience as a ' 
bookkeeper, he became interested in the distilling and brewing business 
and shortly after became the sole proprietor. The business grew by leaps 
and bounds, and he was soon compelled to invade the United States for the 
purchase of raw material and to find additional markets for his enormous 
output. His extensive importation of grain led to his acquiring a fleet 
of vessels and later led him to heavily invest in the construction of 
railroads and the furnishing of their equipment. He built the Kingston 
b:anch of the G:a~d Trunk Railway and founded the Ontario Foundry at 
K1ngs on to fac1l1tate the manufacture of locomotives He was a strong 
Conse .ative and thoroughly devoted to his friend and'leader the late 
Sir John A. Macdonald. AT the latter's solicitation, he contested the 
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countv of Frontenac against Sir Henry Smith, and, after a most excit­
ing canvass, was returned to Parliament -a victory tha~ was.s?lely . 
d e to Mr. Morton's personal popularity. Of generous d1spos1t1on, h1s 
lavish charities knew no distinction of race or creed. He died on the 
7th. day of July, I86?. 

Thomas Nio le, the younger, was for years emp~oyed by Mr. ~orton; 
so also was his brother-in-law, Armstrong McCormack, who marr1ed 
Ag~es Nickle. We are unable to state in what year it was that ~illiam 
Nickle became identified with the Morton distilling and brewing bus­
iness, but he thoroughly mastered all its det~~Js, and his abilities 
contributed to its marvellous success. So thoroughly was this recog­
nized that when Mr. Morton's fortune became impaired through other 
investments, William Nickle assumed the entire control and management. 
Upon his retirement from this business, Mr. Nickle interested himself 
in various enterprises that made forvthe prosperity and growth of 
Kingston. He was President of the St. Lawrence Steamboat Company, a 
director of the Kingston Cotton Mills Company, of the Ontario Building 
and savings ~ociety, of the Kingston and Pembroke Rail y and other 
corporations. - ~o man stood higher in the business world. Shortly 
before his death Hugh McLennan, of Montreal, wrote concerning him: 
"I have always remembered the confidence he inspired in business 
relations with him, and which have ±eR~ been a great advantage to me 
ever since. His record for integrity and honesty is a good example to 
the generations following him. I am always pleased now in thinking ~~ 
of him that his late years are in comparative ease and peculiarly 
pleasant in his family surroundings." 

Mr. Nickle was a Presbyterian and a member of St. Andrew's con­
gregation. He took a keen interest in all matters that pertained to 
the uplifting of his fellow-men. He was a generous friend to ueen's 
University. By his will, he set apart ten thousand dollars to be 
applied, at his winow's discretion, to some deserving charity. This 
bequest now stands as a tribute to his memory in the "Nickle Wing" 
of the General Hospital. Nor was his charity confined to the mere 
donation of money. After the year of the grea. t famine in Ireland a 
number of imndgrants arrived at Kingston sorely afflicted with a high -
ly contagious fever contracted aboard ship. Their condition was most 
pitiable; all, or nearly all, or them, died from the disease. Among 
the few who ventured to th~ir relief and ministered to them in their 
dangerous affliction was Mr. William Nickle who doubtless recalled 
the sad situation of his own family years before when quqrantined at 
ue?ec. - In politics Mr. Nickle was an earnest member of the Conser­

vat1ve party and enjoyed for years the friendship and confidence of 
his neighbour, Sir John A9 Macdona1d. 

He was twice married, but few of his first family survive and 
none of them reside in the Bay of ~uinte District. In IB69 he'married 
Miss Folger, whose brothers were prominent for years in promoting and 
financing.many e~terprises for the betterment of Kingston. ~is eldest 
son '?Y th1s marr1ag~ is Wil+iam Folg_~r Nickle, or the law firm of Itir k­
patr1ck, Ro~ers & N1ckle? K1ngston.-He graduated from ~ueen's in !892 
completed h1s legal stud1?s at Osgoode Hall, & was called to Bar in f 

1895.- His brother, H.C.N1ckle, was superintendent of the Kingston 
Ports:nouth and Catara qui RAilway - in which he & his family were iar­
gely 1nterested. -

- -- ~ 
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•1"HE MOWAT FAMILY. -
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'.Phe scope of this work compels us to regard John IJ:owat, the pio~eer, 
as the founder of the Mowat family in uanada. He sprang from an anc1ent 
Scottish family and his ancestors for many generations can be easily 
traced through the 1~wats of Bucholi, Caithness-shire, Scotland. 

As a lad h early developed a spirit of adventure a~d that loyalty 
to King and Empire that has characterized his descendants. Having 
volunteered as a soldier his parents bought his discharge, only to find 
him soon after enlist d ln the 3rd. Buffs (now the East Kent Regiment), 
with whom he served through the Peninsular campaign under Sir John Moore 
and Sir Arthur W llesley, better known to history as the Duke of Well­
ington. 

Shortly after the fall of Napoleon in ISI4, the b ttalion of the 
Buffs were ordered to Canada to take part in th struggle then going on 
between Britain and the United States. They arrived in Quebec in July, 
I8I4, and on September IIth., played a gallant part in th disastrous 
action at Plattsburg. ergeant Mowat soon after retired to civil life 
and entered upon the duties of Canadian citizenship. In I8I9 he was 
joined by his Scottish sweetheart, Helen Levack, and they were married 
on June the 16th. of that year at · Montreal, by Rev. J. Somerville, 
Presbyterian Minister. 

Of their children, Sir Oliver Mowat, born at Kingstont July 22nd., 
1820, wasdestined to occupy a position unique in the history of the 
British Empire; having held the Premiership of Ontario continuously 
from 1872 until his voluntary resignation in I896, when he left his 
party still firmly entrenched in power. Prior to 1872 h.e had won recogxt 
nition as a distinguished lawyer, as an eminent judge and as a jurist 
and publicist of national reputation. He revised, molded and largely 
created the present statutes and jurisprudence of Ontario. His prudence 
as a lawyer, his skill as a statesman, and the popular ~onfidence 
begotten by his integrity, contributed in no small degree to the unifi­
cation of canada; and he is permanently enshrined in the nat~ional· 
pantheon as one of the "Fathers of Confederation." 

Having helped to form the Federal Constitution, he guarded with 
zealo~s ?are its interpretation and integrity. His long premiership 
was d1st1nguished by a defense of Provincial rights and ownership. 
He was truly the ·Expounder or t he Constitution" and since his death 
his pre-eminence in that respect has not been re~chedby any public man 
in canada. After a brief service in the Government of Sir Wilfrid 
Laurier, he became Lieutenant Governor of Ontario in I897, and died at 
the Government House, Toronto, on the I9th. day of April 1903. 

It is out of the question in a work of this sort to ~ore than sum­
marize the characteristics of his career. His biography belongs to the 
history of Canada. 

Moreover, other members of this family achieved well-merited 
distinction. Rev. John Bower Mowat, second son of the Pioneer was a 
man of no less ability than his distinguished brother, although his 
t~lents and attainments appealed less st~ikingly to the multitude of 
h1s countryr-:1.n. He was born at Kingston in !825, and educated at ueen' s 
and the Uni~ersity . of Edinburgh, receiving the degree of M.A.,,in I847. 
He was orda1ned to the ministry in I850. In I857 he was ppointed to the 
~osi ;on o~ _rofessor.of Hebrew Chaldu and Old Testament Exegesis at 
Queen s Un1versity, K~ngston. He received the degree of D.D. from Glas-

gow in I883. 
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The famous missionary was succeeded in his life work by his son, 

/and Rev. Rev. J. D. ;/his daughter, :Miry Jane Thomas, narried Rev· Ashton 

Dibb of the Tinnevelly Mission. Their son, Frederick Thomas Dibb, was 

born in India, educated in England, and resides with his wife and family 

at Napanee. He is a priest of th Church of England. 

See 
Jl 

ANDREW MILLER. -

THE CHILDREN AND GRANDCHILDREN: 
I. Andrew iller, m. and set. Ernesttown. Issue: 
II. Jacob Miller, d. unm. 
III.samuel Miller, m. Amanda Hawle~: set. Ernesttown, Issue: 

(I) Davis Hawley, ( 2) William, 7
( 3) Nancy, ( 4) Mercy, ( 5) 

samuel Kellar, (6) Charles Everett, and (7) Anna. 
IV. Peter ~filler, m. Esther Briscoe; set. Ernesttown. Issue: (I) 

Andrew, ( 2 ). John, ( 3) Norris, ( 4) William, ( 5) Elizabeth, 
(6) Jane, (7) Albert, (8) Ruth, and (9) Peter. 

VA illiam Miller, m. ldiss Sharp; set. Ernesttown. 
VI. Nancy Miller, m. Frederick Kellar: set. Morven. 

THE GRANDCHILDREN AND ISS'OE: 
See III. The samuel Miller Branch: 

(I) Davis Hawley Miller, d. unm. 
(2} Villiam I~ller, m. Catherine E. McGilvary. ta+ Issue: (a) 
Frederick F. Miller, m. Bertha Smith of Montreal; set. Napanee. 
(Issue: William M., Diana W., Gordon McK. and Frederick A. De vvolfe). 
(b) sarah E. Miller, ~· Rev. F. T. Dibb; set. Napanee. (Issue:! child) 

(3) Nancy Miller, m. John Taylor; set, Belleville. Lissue (a) John Taylor, 
a solicitor at Victoria Bridge, B. c., m. I~ra L. Hopkins. {Issue: 
Ethel and Dorothy). {b.) and (c) George and Ada Taylor, d. unm. 

(4} Mercy Miller, m. Zina Ham; set. Napanee. tissue: {a) John S. Ham, 
m. Helen Miller; set. Napanee. (Issue: Douglas and Kenneth.) 

(5)8amuel K. Miller, m. Jane Garrison. tssue: (a) Fred. D. Miller, 
m. Hester A. Burley. (Issue: Gladys, Frederick and Harold.) 

( 6) Charles E. Miller, m. Huldah Rowe. Issue:- (a) Anna Miller, m. 
Mr. Olsen; set. Des Moines, Iowa. (b.) Minnie Miller, m. Dr. Allen; 
set. St. Louis, and (c) May Miller, m. Mr. Pierce, set. Belleville. 

(7) ·Anna Miller, m. J. J. Johnston; set, Bath. Issue: (a) Harry M. John­
ston, m. Edna Briscoe; set. Adolphustown. (Issue: Mildred & Dorothy.) 

-IV. ThePeter l~J.ller branch: 
( IO .andrew v.d.ller, m. , went west. 
(2) John ~liller, set. in California. 
(3) Norris ~filler, m. Margaret Aylesworth; set. ~rnesttown. 
(4) William Miller, m. Hannah Gilbert; set. Ernesttown. 
(5) Elizabeth Miller, m. Bowen E. Aylesworth; set. Ernesttown. /1y 
6) Jane Miller m. A. D. Fras~r· set. near Fredericksburgh. v 

(7J .albert ilier, unm.; and lBf Ruth 1Vliller, m. Robert Madden; se 
Fredericksburgh. I ssue: Four sons and three daughters. -



THE :MASSEY FANliLY. -
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The Massey family came over from 1\Jorm.andy with William the Oo queror 
in !066, some of his leading officers being of that name. In recognit­
ion of valiants rvice for the King,,they were rewarded with large 
estates in England, where the~ still hold important positions. The Irish 
branch of the family is at present represented by two peers of the realm 
Lord Massey of Duntrileague and Lord Clariva. 

At the beginning of the seventeenth century some members of the 
ramily left ~ngland to try their fortunes in the New World. They 
located in what is now the New England States, and Massachusetts is 
said to have received its name from them. Important positions of trust 
were filled by members of the family, and Jonathan Massey, great­
grand ther of Levi Ma. ssey, was a judge. crhe name may now be found in 
every s te of the Union. 

naniel assey, in the year I8o8, left v'atertown, N.Y., and came to 
Northumberland, where he settled near C~bourg. He had two sons, Jona­
than, rather of Levi Massey; and Daniel, founder of the Massey-Harris 
business and rather of the late Hart A. Massey, the great financier and 
~hilanthrop t. Jonathan left a good property to hi ahildren, of whom 
Levi is t only surviving so • He was bar .ear Cobourg, Ont., in the 
year I82?, located thirty-fiv years ago near Belleville, where he now 
resides, and in I860 married Miss McClatchie, sister of A. McClatchie, 
M. A. 

The McClatchie family is of Scotch descent, and on the mother's side 
/familYis descended from the old and illustrious of/Yale. Two of Mrs. Levi 

Massey's great uncles founded and endowed Yale University of the 
Eastern States. 



- ARl TRONG McCORMICK. -
------~------------

The beginning of Ontario is indeed to be traced to the ea~ly set­
tlers known as the United Empire Loyalists, who came from w~a~ 1s now the 
United States and settled at Kingston and along the.Bay of ~u1n~e, immed­
iately after the American Revolution, These were ma1nly of Engl1sh and 
Dutch descent, including many Friends (or Quakers, as they wer~ c~mmo~y 
called), and they were undoubtedly reinforced by some English 1mm7gr~t1on 
But the peopling of Ontario is to be attributed, in the main, to lmml­
grants from scotland and the North of Ireland. They were distinguished by 
thrift and enterprise; they supplemented the agricultural pursuits of the 
Loyalists by ventures in commerce,manufacture, and transportation.Through 
their restless energy markets were opened to the produc~ of the farm; lan 
lands rapidly rose in value; and the comforts and luxur1es of older lands 
became common in Ontario. They also permanently impressed upon the young 
province their rigorous devotion to religion and their unwavering loyalty 
to the King. Hence Upper Canada soon evolved its o • characteristics; 
differing widely from the United States, and also distinct from England. 

Among those who came from the North of Ireland to find a new home 
in Ontario, should be prominently mentioned, Armstrong McCormick (who has 
resided in Kingston since I84I. A native of Donegal, his father, John 
McCormick (who married Jane Armstrong) lived to an advanced age, and for 
sixty years was an elder in the church at Convoy. 

Armstrong McCormick came from Londonderry to New York in the Amer­
ican ship the "New Jersey". At that time stea navigation upon the ocean 
was unknown; and it equired some thirty d ys ·-to make the trip. From 
New York, he proceed d at once to Kingston, and,upon the day of his arri­
val, entered the employment of Armstrong & Greer , merchants on Princess 
street. The Armstrong of this firm v~s Mr. McCormick's maternal uncle, 
and he remained with them for about a year, when he entered the employ­
ment of his brother, Robert McCormick, who had preceded him to Canada 
and was already established in business upon his own account. It was 
seven years later that he became connected with the distilling and brew­
ing business, then owned and operated by his brother-in-law, the late 
James Morton. 

Jame Morto at one time a member of Parliament, was for many year 
the wealthiest man in Kingston. He was of a most generous disposition 
and endeared himself to the community by his lavish charities, that em­
braced all worthy objects of his bounty, without di tinction of race or 
creed. such popular rejoicing followed his triumphant election to Parlia­
ment , that it was said that fully a week elapsed before his supporters 
had all settled down again to the dull routine of ordinary life. 

Armstrong McCormick proved an able manager and a faithful friend to 
Mr. Morton. For three years, commencing with I849 he resided at elling­
ton, in charge of the malt house and other intere;ts of Mr. Morton's 
business, and at the same time managed a store upon his own account buy­
ing and shipping large quantities of grain, fish, pork and flour. ' 

The Morton business continued to grow in size and importance, and 
the. owners were. compelled to look abro~d for a considerable portion of 
the1r rww mater1a1, and asso for markets in which to dispose of their 
goods. For many years Mr. McCormick, as general agent travelled exten­
~ively, buying grain in Chicago and the West, and marketing their output 
1n ~ew York, ~u~bec and other important points. He continued in this 
bus1ness after 1t hadpassed from ·Mr. Morton's control & indeed for some 
time after the latter's death, which occurred July 7th., I867. _ 
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He retired from active business in February, I902, and was then perhaps 
the oldest citizen of Kingston, and his faculties were s~ll keen and 
bright. 

He 1~s a lifelong adherent of the Presbyterian church, and a staunch 
conservative. Long a trusted friend and supporter of Sir John A. Mac­
donald, and cherished with loyal pride the memory of the great Eremier. 

About IB69, lVlr. McCormick had opened business on his 01~m account, as 
a Jobber in Kingston, and continued prosperously until ~·ebruary, I902, 
when, on account of advancing years and failing health, as stated above, 
he retired. 

Mr. and l~s. McCormick lived a serene and peaceful life, encompassed 
by the affectionate care of t heir descend~nts and the respect and esteem 
of their adopted city. They resided in the fine old mansion that was 
built by the late Sir Alexander Campbell, Lieutenant Governor of Ontario 

_til's. ]' cCormick' s remarkable memory made her a trusted ~P3:eREl author­
ity upon all happenings and dates of interest to her family & friends. 
She was t he daughter of Thomas Nickle (who married Hargaret Renton) of 
Swinton, Berwickshire, Scotland. 



THE KETCHESON FAMILY. -

When William Ketcheson of Roden, .Yorkshire, ~ngland, bade his kindred 
farewellon the morning of his departure for the New World, in the rosy 
month of June, 1773, he little dreamed of what was in store in the years 
of one short century; nor of the part which he and his posterity would 
play in the great drama that was soon to create a great Republic and lay 
the foundation of another British nation in the virgin soil of the other 
half of North America. Horn in 1759, he was a mere lad of fourteen when 
he left his native shores accompanied by his sister, ancy and his uncle, 
Thomas Orders. They landed in the New World at Norfolk, Virginia.•rhree 
years later when in !776 the disaffected Colonies declared their inde­
pendence, young Ketcheson joined the British army, and was severely 
wounded in actio • Three years later, he was transferred from Emerick's 
Corps into the British Legion; he went to South Carolina and through the 
Southern Provinces with uolonel Tarlton and Lord Cornwallis, and took 
part in the capture of Charleston. After the evacuation of New York by 
the British he went to Nova Scotia, where he remained three years. In 
I786 he came with one of those heroic little bands of United Empire 
Loyalists who first planted the old flag in the virgin soil of what 
six years after became Upper Canada. 

It is said that th three years in Nova Scotia were spent in fishing 
on a rock-bound coast at a place called ~ortoon, and that fire swept 
over the place and destroyed everything. His wife and children were 
put on board a boat and taken to New York, while he remained to settle 
up his business affairs. It is also said he came to uanada direct from 
Nova Scotia and for a time befor gojng to New York for his familyworked 
land on shares in the Third Township. The family was for about t el e 
years identified with the Hay Bay settleme t before finally settling in 
I800 in Sidney. The old loyalist was granted 6oo acres of land in the 
fifth concession of Sidney in recognition of his services. 

William Ketcheson lost his father at the age of four; his mother whose 
~iden nane was Bally Ayr, subsequently married Hobert Ellis. 

The family of the Pioneer William Ketcheson consisted of seven sons: 
illia!D. (Colonel.) , H ry, John, oiiJJi , Benjamin; 11 j h and Jatn s, and 

three da hters: Sarah, Deborah, and Phoebe. / Fred G. Ketcheson, of 
Tor nto (coll ctor of' and deal r in 0 nadiana and other books) :i~ <a on 
of · illiam H. Ketcheson, of the H nry Ketcheson B anch of this fa ily. 
The first t enty pages o Pi~ eer Life on tfie Bay G>·t' . n:te '<[ al$ witfu_ 
its h1st. cy an _ genealoeY. 

One of the most interesting stories in connection with the earliest 
days of Bay of uinte settlement is the following: nHis (Colonel William 
Ketcheson's) daughter Gatrey is the subject of a well known incident 
that happened when she was a child five years old. rhe family was living 
on the fifth concession of Sidney, and the child was sent on an errand to 
the house of a neighbour, Duncan Irvine, some miles distant. The forest 
intervened, and when darkness approached and she had not returned, the 
parents became alarmed. As it was evident that Gatrey had wamdered from 
the trail and was lost, the two families a search. Several Indian 
scouts and hunters were engaged, and for miles around the woods erre 
searched, but the night was dark, and, to add to the difficulty, a storm 
of rain and hail set in, on mpnday. every settler and brave in the neigh 
-borhood turned out to assist; on Tuesday, the searchers had increased to 
three hundred. They shouted, fired guns, and looked into every hole and 
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brush heap; caves of bears and other w d animals were examined. On 
Friday, Indian runners were sent up and dovm the Bay to find the body, 
as it was supposed by them that the child must be dead. The force in­
creased to five hundred. They organized into squads and scoured the 
forest in every direction, but their efforts were unavailing until, just 
as they were about to abandon the search the child was found alive. 
The joyful news was proclaimed by shouts thst made the forest ring with 
the glad acclaim. Gatrey had wandered e·ght days in the forest, and had 
subsisted on wintergreens. The nights were cold and she was barefooted 
and thinly clad. One night an~ animal of some kind lay upon her cold 
feet, and, lest it lest it might kill her, she was afraid to stir. Just 
before she was found, she had lain down to die, having previously re­
peated a verse she had learned of her prayers. She was reduced to a 
skeleton, and it was some time before she fully recovered from the 
terrible experience. For months she shrank with terror at the approach 
of darkness; but in tim:e the baneful effects of her eight days' exposure 
in October weather in a Canadian forest passed away, and she grew into a 
strong and vigous womanhood. She first married William Hagerman, by whom 
she had two sons, john and William, and afterwards Robert Everett Grass, 
when she became the mother of Robert Everett G-rass rr ·. 
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Captain Michael Grass was born in Strasburg, Germany. The name 

is said to have been originally "Kress", the German word for Grass. Were 

the change instituted by the old Loyalist himself, it must have occurred 

shortly after his emigration to the Western world; for the name appears 

under its present form in the power of attorney grante~ to. him by George 

III. in !793. During the hostilities that prevailed between Great 

Britain and France, throughout North America, prior to the American 

Revolution, 1tlchael Grass rendered loyal service to the British Crown 

and being captured by the enemy was for some time held as a prisoner of 

war at the French settlement of Cataraqqui. He made his escape and fled 

to what was then the English province of New York. Soon after Catar­

aqui was captured by the English under Colonel Bradstreet; the garrison 

was transported to. Montreal, and the French fortress and village of Gat­

araqui ceased to exist. Its admirable location, however, at the source 

of the River St. Lawrence, could not long escape the attention of the 

British Government; and, it was mainly through the instrumentality of 

captain Michael Grass, that the important city of Kingston - so intense­

lY loyal to the British Crown - arose upon the ruins of his former place 

of captivity. It is needless to say th t Michael Grass served in the 

Royal ranks during the american Revolution; his sash and sabre with its 

massive s~lveF handle of solid silver are still cherished heirlooms among 

his descendants. 

In I783 began that remarkable movement in North American history 

known as the Unite~ Empire Loyalists movement from the United States to 

Canada. Many of the intrepid patriots sailed from the Atl~ntic seaboard 

to New Brunswick and ova Scotia, and, thence, a considerable number made 
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their way to what is now the Province of O~tario. . . 

It seemed to the British authoritiesdes1rableto d1rect th1s move-
ment towards founding a colony at the head ~ters of.the R:ver St •. 
Lawrence; and Michael Grass, on account of h1s keen 1ntelm~gence, h1s 
proven loyalty, and his familiarity with this part of the country 
gained during and prior to his captivity, was frequently consulted 
by the generai in command 'and eventuallyplaced at the head of ~ ~ . . 
band of loyalists, who in several ships, and under convoy of a Brlt­
ish man-of-war, made their way from New York, to Sorel. Hence, a 
detachment under the command of Captain Grass penetrated to Gollins 
Bay. Finding the soil west of the Bay, to be rocky, he is .said to hav 
d~~lared that he had come too far to settle upon a rock. However this 
may be, he picked upon the present township of Kingston, and returned 
with his companions, for the winter, to Sorel. He assisted in the 
surveys, running himse1f the base line forth township of Kingston; 
and, under the power of attorney, issued to him by his Majesty King 
George III., he drew the lands for the loyalists, their sons and 
daught s; his own patents embraced one-third of the present city of 
Kingston. 

He strongly recommended the creation of a separate province to 
the west of Quebec, and cordially welcomed the establishment of 
Upper canada with the seat of government at First Town or Kingston, 
as it began to be called by the time that Governor Simcoe arrived 
and began to organize what is now the Province of Ontario. 

Captain Grass bestirred himself to promote the growth and pros­
perity of the new capital; and the present market, the sit of the 
Court House, and the Macdonald park were presented by him by deed of 
gift to the city of Kingston, andto this day worthily perpetuate 
his memory. He d don April 25th., IBI3, having lived to see a 
flourishing city (of which he was the foremost ~itizen) arise upon 
the ruins of his former place of captivity. That he was not unmind­
ful of the great work that he had accomplished is evidenced by the 
following extract from a letter written by him two years before 
his death. 

"Seven andi twenty years have rolled away since my eyes for the 
second time beheld the shores of Cataraqui. In that space of time 
how many changes have taken place. How m:lny of the seats of my ass­
ociates are now vacant ••• Yes, seven and twenty years ago scarce 
a vestige of a human habitation could be found in the whole extent 
of the Bay of Quinte. Not a settler had dared to penetrate the vast 
forests that circled its shores. Even on the spot now covered with 
stately edifices were to be s en only the barkthatched wigwam of the 
savage or the newly erected tent of the hardy loyalists. That when 
the ear heard me it blessed me for being strong in my attachment to 
my sovereign and high in the confidence of my fellow subjects. I led 
the loyal band; I pointed out to them the sit of their future metro-
polis and gained for persecuted principles, sanctury; for mysrlf an 
and followers, a home.2 

Truly it may be said that Captain Michael Grass was the founder 
of Kingston; the first citizen og the Bay of Quinte! His descendants 
are traced in the table annexed. Many of them are scattered, but 
among_t~em are to be found some of the most substantial and promin­
ent o~t~zens of Ontario, who cherish with commendable pride the 
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traditions of their distinguished ancestry. 

Peter Grass eldest son of the Pioneer, married Esther, daughter of 
Major John Eve~ett. She is said to have been the first white child to 
be born in Kingston . They had several children, their eldest son and 
child being Robert Everett Grass, who married first, Nancy Purdy of 
the old and well-known Purdy family, and second, Mrs. Hagerman, whose 
maiden name was Gaitrey Ketcheson and whose adve ture as a young child 
lost in the forest for eleven days, has long b en a favorite tradition 
of the Bay district. 

Ruliff Grass, son of Robert Everett Grass and Nancy Purdy his wife, 
and great-grandson of Captain Michael Grass, was - ucated at the 
Stirling High School and at Victoria College. H engaged for some 
twenty years in mercantile business at Frankford, and then became, and 
still is, largely interested in the dredging business for the Canadian 
Government. He now resides in Toronto, where he is a leading citizen 
and recognized as a power in the financial world, being Vice-President 
of the Excelsior Life Insurance Company, director of the Ontario Bank, 
etc. !~ . Grass owns the sword and sash of his famous ancestor, Captain 
Michael Grass, and is thoroughly versed in the early history of Ontario. 

Eva Grass, daughter of the Pioneer, married Peter Wartman. The 
Wartmans, together with the Days, the Herchemers, the Purdys, the 
Everetts, and the Grasses, are reckoned among the very first of the 
United Empire Loyalists. Peter Wartman drew lands upon the Lake Shore, 
and the Royal patent confirming his title is now in the possession of 
his grandson, Henry Richardson. His possession, however, had long ante 
dated the receipt of this document ; indeed the Wartman have/fiae lands 
granted by the Crown since I784; lands,that at no time during these one 
hundred and twenty years, have been encumbered for a single dollar • 

.Peter Wartman, son of Henry Wartman, married Hester Burdett Day. 
They had eight children, their daughter, Susanna, became the wife of 
James Richardson, a leading citizen of Kingston, whose large business 
since his decease , is carried on by his sons, George a d Henry. 

Another very dis nguished representative and descendant of Uaptain 
Michael Grass, i E J. B. Pense, M. L. A., editor and proprietor of 
the British VVhig, Kingston. He is equally prominent in the polit i cal, 
newspaper and business wold, and en·o s , vithal, a high degree of well­
merited opularity. 
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One of the historical "Beacon Lights" of the Bay of ~uinte Dis -
trict is the Gilmour & Co., Limited; and, since its inception in I852, 
it has been the largest industry on the River Trent. The history of the 
Gilmour enterprises is practically the history of Trenton, as the gro~h 
of the latter has been largely due to the former. The above company 1s 
an offshoot of the original Pollock & Gilmour Company, of London, Liver­
pool and Glasgow, for years the largest vessel owners in the world •. 
Until sailing vessels were supplanted by iron and E .r- ,, Mr. John Gll­
mour (father of David Gilmour, the present President of Gilmour & Co., 
Limited), managed the Canadian branch of this business, then known as 
Allan Gilmour & Co., Quebec; Gilmour & Co., 1bntreal, Ottawa and Trenton. 
Allan Gilmour then parted with his Canadian interests to Mr. John Gilmour, 
who took over the business and carried it on until his death. His three 
sons, John, Allan and David divided; Allan and David carrying on ~t Tren­
ton, and John the Ottawa branch (with Mr. Hughson) under the name of 
Gilmour & Hughson. 

Gilmour & Co., Limited, of ~renton, Ontario, is now one of the 
largest door and interior finish water power plants in America. No other 
of its size is better managed or at less cost for the finished product. 
Its saw mills, box factory and egg case plant are supplied with unlimited 
water power, and large timber limits (many of them reserved for future 
pulp and paper mills), while unexcelled facilities exist for delivering 
their products to the markets of the world. This company is able to 
compete for the trade of the United States, Great Britain and the world. 
Large shipments are made daily; hundreds of men are employed in the 
work of manufacturing, and large contract orders are constantly being 
filled. 

one of the most important of the many enterprises of the Gilmour & 
Company, Limited, is the patent door and interior finished woodwork, man­
ufactured by special machinery and by skilled mechanics, which on account 
of its impervi~fi J to climatic influences, its superior finish,aae lightnes~ 
durability a nd moderate cost, is being placed in the finest buildings 
of Canada, as for example, in the Board of Trade Building, Montreal; the 
King Edward Hotel, •roronto; the stations of the C. P. R. and G. T. R. as 
well as in the best class of residences. With the advent of the Trent 
Valley waterway, the possibilities of this large manufacturing concern 
are unlimited. 

rhe officers of the company are: Mr. David Gilmour President; Mr. 
Robert Waddell, Vice-President and General Manager; Mr. j. H. Campbell 
Local Director; Mr. c. M. Richardson, Secretary-Treasurer. (pp.368-369' 
Pioneer Life on the Bay of Quinte: Rolph and Clark, Limited, Toronto.)'-
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Henry Gildersleeve the founder of the uanadian branch of t he Gil­
dersleeve family who'rrliy :properly be called the nFa ther of Navigation 
upon the Bay of 'uinte", came from Connecticut and settled at Bath, 
about July Ist., IBI6. His life for a time is so closely con~ect~d 
with the Finkle family, that a brief reference to.the latt~r s hls­
tory even at the risk of rep·tition, may not be lnappropr1ate. 

h Finkles are descended from the United Empire Loyalist, Dr. 
George Finkle who came from Germany when a young man, and settled in 
Dutchess County, New York. Here he acquired very considerable landed 
property, which remained in his possessi~n until abo~t the close of 
the American Revolution. His loyalty dur1ng this try1ng period led to 
the confiscation of his estates, and impelled him to seek shelter in 
another land, under the protection of the British Crown. 

Of his two sons one immediately migrated to the further West, and 
is said to have be~n the founder of the Finkle family in Sidney. The 
second son, Henry Finkle, entered the Engineers' Department at Quebec, 
and also mastered the trade of carpentry, before tak; ~~ up the lands 
to which he was entitled. Subsequently he settled on · the ]'rant of 
Ernesttown, and on May I 5t n ., I788, married Lucy Bleeker. He died, 
January I5th., IBOB. He utilized his knowledge of carpentry in erect­
ing the first framed house in Upper Canada. It was, for its day, quite 
an imposing mansion Here, Judge Hagerman held Court at various times, 
and in one case, infl"cted capital punishment. 

The name of Henry Fin le occurs repeatedly in all the early records 
of Ernesttown. Not only was he respected for his means and attainments 
but his kindly disposition seems to have brought him no little personal 
popularity. The marriage register of the parish church at Bath, shows 
that he officiated as a witness at innumerable weddings among the 
children of the pioneers. 

He amassed a very considerable estate, and his widow ~~s enabled to 
provide their children with the best possible education. Their daughter 

inerva, attended Litchfield Academy, Connecticut, as the school mate 
of the sisters Beecher, one of whom subsequently beca e famous in his­
tory and literature as Harriet Beecher Sto~e, whose celebrated story, 
"Uncle Tom's Cabin", was instrumental in driving slavery from the 
estern vorld. 

Another daught r, S rah Finkle, attended the same academy • There 
is some question whether she was born in IBOI or in 1804 but in 
either event she was scarcely more than a child, when he~ future hus­
band, Henry Gildersleefe, arrived in Canada 

He came from a lon~ line of successful ship builders, including his 
r~ther, who at.that t1me o~ed and operate a large ship yard, u on the 
banks.of ~he R1ver Connec~1cut. Henry had thoroughly learned hfu trade 
ahs.sth1pwr1ght, before comang to Ontario; indeed,he was then over 
t 1r Y years of age, and, as his subsequent career would indicate, 
thoroughly matured; a resourceful, energetic man of marked executive 
ability. 

Ship building had already commenced at Finkle's Point indeed it 
is stated that the steamer ''Frontenac" ( constructed at ~ cost of one 
hundred thousand dollars), was launched within a month or two after 
~is arrival •. rt ~s mo:e likely, however, that this steamer was fin­
lshed under h1s d1rect1on. Certain it is that he finished two other 
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respectively and subsequently constructed a ntunber of add1t1onal 
steamers th~t plied for years between the various ports along the Bay 
of Q,uint~ and Lake Ontario Among these we recall the "Commodore Barry" 
the "Henry Gildersleever', '"The Prince. of Wales", "The New Era" and 
the "Bay of Q,uinte". Another packet bull t to ply between ~oronto and 
Niagara, and declared by Captain Murny to h~ve b?en the f1nest ?oat 
that he had ever seen in Kingston H a~bor, 1s s~1d by a ~er~ em1nent 
historian, to have been called the "M1nerva Ann ; but th7s 1s probably 
an error. The names Minerva and Ann, were borne respeut1~ely! by the 
eldest and youngest daughters of Henry Finkle; and and th1s t1tle t~e 
Minerva Ann vvas borne not by this packet but by a small schooner bu1lt 
for the ¥idow Finkle. 

In IB24, Henry Gildersleeve married Sarah Finkle, and his descen~­
ants are traced in the table annexed. In time he passed from the bu1ld­
ing to the operation and running of steam ships, training his men in 
eve~y department of the work, and successfully carrying on a business 
that has grown and prosperedto this hour. He died in Kingston, October 
Ist., I85I, aged sixty-five. 

He was succeeded in business by his son, Overton Gildersleeve, who 
married Louise, daughter of Chief Justice Draper. He died in !864, and 
the business was then taken over by his brother Charles, as hereafter 
noted. 

Charles Fuller Gildersleeve, son of Henry Gildersleeve and Sarah 
Finkle, was born in Kingston, educated at Upper Canada College, and 
called to the bar in I859. Upon the death of his brother in I864, he 
assumed the management of the steamship business, built and owned the 
"Corinthian" "Norse:rnan" "Maud" "Welshmann and "North Kingn· and has 

' ' ' ' ' also owned the "Empress", the "Bay of Quinte", "Hastings" and "Hero", 
plying between Rochester and Port Hope, and Kingston and Belleville. 
In 1893, he formed the Lake Ontario and Bay of ~uinte Steamboat Co., 
which took over the vessels ovmed by him, and of which Company he was 
at once made General Manager. In 1894 he was a_~ointed general Manager 
of the Richelieu and Ontario .r avigation Co, ovming sorr1e tuenty-five ste 
steamers in active operation and controlling the passenger traffic 
betweenTorontu, Montreal, <:(,Uebec, and the Saguenay River. Although be­
fore his appointment t .e stock had paid no dividends for years, it at 
once became, under his management, a good investment. H was instru­
mental in having built the Kingston nd Pembroke railroad and became 
the President of the Company. He took an active part in f~unding the 
Kingston School of Mines and the Agricultural College. He was chairman 
of the committee, which secured the enlargement of St. George's Cath­
edral, at Kingston. For more than twenty years he was a member of the 
city coubcil, and in I8?9 was Mayor of Kingston. He is a member of the 
Liberal party and has been a candidate in the Liberal interest for the 
Provincial Parliament. - - - He married Mary E. Herchemer a descend­
ant of Colonel Herkimer, a distinguished lpyalist mention~d by Sabine 
Ryerson, Canniff and other historians. Upon her m~ther's side she eas ' 
descend?d from Sir Frederick McKenzie. Of their children; Henry resides 
at Coll1ngwood, where he is manager of the Northern Navigation Company· 
I~ud Gertrude married Colonel Rivers, R. c. A., Ottawa. ' 
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James Gildersleeve, youngest son and fifth child of Henry and Sarah 
Finkle Gildersleeve, was educated at Kingston, Upper Canada College, 
and ~ueen's University, receiving the degree of LL.B. from ~ueen's 
in I863. It is an interesting fact that the law faculty having been 
but recentl ~rganized, its first graduat a to receive this degree 
was t he class of 1 63. Thus, Mr. Gildersleeve, being the first to 
receive his diploma, enjoys the singular distinction of being the 
first Bachelor of Laws to graduate from this famous University. In 
the same year he was called to the Bar, and continued in active prac­
tice for the next ten or twelve years; during a portion of this time 
he -was in partnership with R. T. Walkem, LL.D., now Chancellor of the 
Diocese of Ontario. 

It was about I875 that he entered the insurance and steamship 
business, becoming agent for the Allan and other leading lines. In 
I884, he was gazetted Registrar of the city of Kingston; and since 
I89I, has devoted his entire time to the responsible duties incumbent 
upon the position. In the last named year, he formed a partnership 
with his nephew, James Kilpatrick, who devotes his entire time to the 
steanship agencies and the insurance business, now carried on under the 

'firm name and style of ''Gildersleeve and Kirkpatrick. 
~rior to his appointment to his present office, Mr. Gildersleeve 

took an active interest in politics, being an earnest member of the 
Liberal party , and high in the counsels of the late Sir Oliver Mowat. 

He also interested himself in matters municipa , serving as Alder­
man of the city of Kingston, from I878 to I882, invlusive. He is a 
faithful member of the Uhurch of ~ ~land. tie married Julia S. Rose, 
daughter of Isaac N. Rose, a leadin~ citizen of Morrisburg, and tor 
years Superintendent of canals. 
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William Evans was born at Pitchford Hall, Leominster, December 9th. 

732. He was the son of William Evans, land stewar . to Lord Oxford, and 
married Catherine ward, January I st., 1766, at St Mary's New Church, 
Strand, London. She was born August 12th., 1738, and died Nay 13th., 
1822. William Evans died April 4th., I8I3. Both were laid to rest in 
the rami y vault, st. Giles, Carnherwell. 

B rn rd Pohlman Evans, youngest son of William Evans, was born July 
I9th., I7?5. On May 28th., I79?, he married Alice Smith, St. Pancras. 
In I83I, he emigrated with his family to Canada. --- He and his family 
made their way/~e Toronto-through the woods, a greater part of the way 
_ to Goderich township, where he purchased several hundred acres of 
land, overlooking the Maitland River. They were people of me ns and 
brought wmth them some of their most prized articles of f rniture, 
including a piano; the latter being the first brought into that section 
of the country. The sudden transition from London, England, to the 
wilds of Canada, was a severe trial to the ~vans family; but they .made 
the best of their surroundings, and prospered. Barnard Pohlman Evans 
died on his farm, Holmesville, near Goderich, on November I6th.,I84I. 
His wife, who lived to a great age, died at the same place. 

John H. w. Evans, eldest son of Barnard Pohlman ~vans, was about 
twenty-one years of age, when he came to Goderich with his parents. He 
had a farm of o e hundred and fifty acres adjoining the homestead. He 
had been well e ucated in England, and in 1845 he removed to Toronto 
and entered the service of the British America Assurance Company, in 
who e employment he remained for over forty years, retiring on a pen-
s on -a few years before his death. He always retained his farm in 
Goderich, and annually spent a few weeks there during the summer months 
He was a member of the Church of EnR a d~ and was active in Uhurch 
matters, being a warden of the church for many years. 

John Dunlop Evans, eldest son of John H. w. Evans, ~~s born on 
the Goderich farm on I~y 2?th., I843, and v~s two years old when his 
parents removed to 'l'oronto. He was educated at private schools and at 
the Upper Canada College. After completing his education, h . was 
articled to Unwin & Miles, land surveyors, Toronto, and subsequently 
received his certificate as P.L.S. In I86?, Mr. Evans removed to ~elle­
ville, and opened an office as civil engineer and architect, and has 
been a resident of the Bay of Quinte district ever since. His business 
career in Belleville was very successful. In I882, he accepted the 
position of Ghief Engineer of the Maintenance of Right of Way of the 
Central Ontario Railway, including the charge and care of all build­
ings, docks, etc. This position he still holds. 

Mr· Evans has also made a thorough study of entomolo~y; and his 
collection of insects in his cabinets at "Spring Bank" (his bea ·~ 1 
residence in Trenton) is considered one of the finest in all uana a. 
He became a member of the Entomological Society of Ontario in !8?5; a 
director, I89I-2, and I897-I90I; and Vice-President since !902. IN 
Po itics, he is a Conservative. The family are members of the Anglican 
Church. 

Mr. Evans' wife was a daughter of Walter Henry, M.D., who was born 
at Donegal, Ire~and, on Janua~ ~st., I79I. He was assistant surgeon 
of the66th. Reg~ment of the Br~t~sh Army during the Peninsular War and 
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served under the Duke of Wellington. He \~S also ~ith the 66th., as 
assistant sur . on, whilst on duty at the island of St. Helena, and was 
present at th post mortem upon Napol on Bonaparte. The memoranda l.119.de 
by him at the time and for the bulletin, at the request of the principa 
medical officer, are to be found in his book, entitled "Trifles from 
my Portfolio." 

While at St. Helena he frequently met the Emperor, who took a keen 
interest in his surgical learning and skill. It happened that he per­
formed one of the first operations ever attempted for tracheotomy, and 
upon a namesake of Napoleon, the child of rshal Bertrand. The Emperor 
was so highly pleased with the success of the operation that he proffer 
ed Dr. Henry a handsome present, but upon learning that its acceptance 
depended upon the consent of his "jailor'', Sir Hudson Lowe, indignan . .,.ly 
withdrew his offer. 

Dr. Henry subsequently became Inspector General of Hospitals for 
~anada, and lived for some years at Belleville, where he died June 2?th 
1860. 
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